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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-KSB*

(Mark One)

x ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006

OR

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from                      to                     

Commission File Number: 001-33105

QUEPASA CORPORATION
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NEVADA 86-0879433
(State or other jurisdiction of
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(480) 348-2665

(Issuer�s telephone number)

Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, $.001 par value per share The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act: None.

* Includes changes from the Form 10-KSB/A (Amendment No. 1) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 4, 2007.
Check whether the issuer is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act.  ¨

Check whether the issuer: (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the past 12 months (or for
such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days.  Yes  x    No  ¨

Check if there is no disclosure of delinquent filers in response to Item 405 of Regulation S-B contained in this form, and no disclosure will be
contained, to the best of the registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-KSB or any amendment to this Form 10-KSB.  x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.).  Yes  ¨    No  x

State issuer�s revenue for its most recent fiscal year: $395,432.

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates at April 13, 2007, computed by reference to the
last sale price of $6.13 per share on the NASDAQ Capital Market, was $75,066,515.

The number of shares outstanding of the issuer�s common stock as of April 13, 2007, was 12,245,761 shares.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Transitional Small Business Disclosure Format  Yes  ¨    No  x
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Explanatory Note � Restatement of Financial Information

As previously disclosed in its Form 8-K filed on April 13, 2007, Quepasa Corporation (the �Company�) determined that it is required to restate its
consolidated financial statements for the first through the third quarters of 2006. As such, the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the
year ended December 31, 2006 reflects restatements of its historical consolidated financial information for the quarters ended March 31, 2006,
June 30, 2006, and September 30, 2006. These restatements, as outlined in Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, relate to errors
associated with the Company�s valuation of certain warrants and stock option awards. Also, the Company has restated its interim financial
information for the third quarter of 2006 related to a grant of common stock and stock options to a consultant that was rescinded in January
2007.

The following table sets forth the effects of the restatements on net loss and loss per share for the applicable periods (dollars in thousands, except
per share amounts):

(Unaudited)

2006 Quarters
1st 2nd 3rd

Net loss, as previously reported $ (2,165) $ (883) $ (1,297)
Total adjustments (4,668) (175) (28)

Net loss, as restated $ (6,833) $ (1,058) $ (1,325)

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of previously reported and restated loss per share, for the periods shown:

(Unaudited)

Quarters
1st 2nd 3rd

Previously
Reported Restated

Previously
Reported Restated

Previously
Reported Restated

2006
Loss from operations $ (2,172) $ (6,841) $ (891) $ (1,066) $ (1,324) $ (1,352)
Net loss $ (2,165) $ (6,833) $ (883) $ (1,058) $ (1,297) $ (1,325)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.27) $ (0.87) $ (0.11) $ (0.13) $ (0.14) $ (0.14)
For additional information relating to the effect of the restatement, reference is made to the following items:

Item 7. Financial Statements

Item 8A. Controls and Procedures
This Annual Report on Form 10-KSB includes restatements of all of the pertinent financial data for the affected periods. As a result, the reader
should not rely on the prior quarterly filings but should rely upon the restated unaudited financial information for the affected periods contained
in this 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.
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PART I

Item 1. Description of Business
The Company

Quepasa (the �Company�) operates a leading bilingual (Spanish/English) Internet portal and online community primarily aimed at the United
States Hispanic market. We seek to provide empowering, enriching, and entertaining content, products, and services to members of our rapidly
growing Internet community. Our community provides users with access to an expansive, bilingual menu of resources that promote social
interaction, information sharing, and other topics of high importance to Hispanic users, including blogs, chat rooms, culturally relevant channels,
email, message boards, news, postcards, radio, user forums, video, and more. We also provide businesses with marketing tools and solutions
designed to enable them to reach our community of users. We were incorporated in 1997 and are a Nevada corporation. We are headquartered in
Scottsdale, Arizona, maintain sales offices in New York, New York and Miami, Florida, and our technical operations are based in Hermosillo,
Mexico.

We seek to create innovative and high quality Internet services for users and to provide efficient and effective marketing services for businesses
to reach these users. We focus on increasing our user base and deepening the engagement of our users on our website to enhance the value of our
user base to advertisers and to increase the spending of these advertisers. We believe that we can increase our user base by offering compelling
Internet services and effectively integrating community, personalization, and content to create a powerful user experience. These user
relationships and the social community created enable us to leverage our offered forms of online advertising as well as premium services for
users.

While many of our services are free to our users, we generate revenue by providing marketing services to businesses and by establishing paying
relationships with our users for premium services and products. All of our offerings are available in both English and Spanish.

2006 Highlights

We fortified our leadership and corporate governance:

� Mr. Robert B. Stearns joined the Company as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. Stearn�s career is
highlighted by executive leadership positions such as Chief Financial Officer of Columbia/HCA Corp. and Chief Financial Officer of
The Dial Corporation.

� Elected Mr. Michael Matte, former Chief Financial Officer of Cyberguard Corporation, to the Board of Directors as an independent
director and chairman of the Audit Committee.

� Elected Dr. Jill A. Syverson-Stork, a Wellesley College Spanish Department Professor, to the Board of Directors as an independent
director who will sit on the Board�s Compensation and Nomination Committees.

� Elected Mr. Lionel Sosa, Chief Executive Officer of Matt.org and founder of Sosa, Bromley, Aguilar, & Associates, the largest
Hispanic advertising agency in the United States, to the Board of Directors.

� Elected Mr. Alonso Ancira, Chairman of the Board of Directors of Altos Hornos de Mexico, S.A.B. de C.V. (�AHMSA�) to the Board
of Directors.

We invested in new and existing offerings to further improve user experience:
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� Redesigned our homepage (www.quepasa.com) and site navigation showcasing expanded content, which includes user friendly
profiles, a streaming radio, and an easy-to-use interface.
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� Launched Quepasa Market Intelligence, a research arm of Quepasa Corporation that provides real time access to the opinions of the
website�s expansive audience of Hispanics and Latinos.

� Launched Quepasa Mobile Entertainment Products, including ring tones, wallpapers, and other cell phone offers, that can be
downloaded to major United States carriers.

� Launched music video content for members through a content delivery arrangement formed with Universal Music Group, the world�s
largest music company.

� Kicked off 2007 Faces of Quepasa.com Contest, a model search in which members will nominate and vote for their favorite �Models.�
Twenty-four winners will form the Faces of Quepasa.

� Launched the Quepasa Recipe Channel, fortifying Quepasa�s Hispanic focused content and offering appetizer, entrée, and dessert
recipes.

We established new alliances and partnerships:

� Entered into a content delivery arrangement with JumpTV to offer streaming video broadcasts of 78 popular television channels
originating from Mexico, Central America, and South America.

� Partnered with The Los Angeles Latino International Film Festival, an event with over 30,000 attendees annually, as the official
online media sponsor.

� Entered into a Corporate Sponsorship and Management Services Agreement with Mexican and Americans Thinking Together, Inc.
(�MATT�).

� Completed a private offering of 1,000,000 shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase an additional 2,000,000 shares to
Mexicans & Americans Trading Together, Inc. in exchange for gross proceeds of $10,000,000.

� Entered into a content delivery arrangement with CNN en Espanol.
Industry Overview

We believe that the Hispanic market, particularly among 18-34 year olds in the United States, is attractive for our growing array of products and
services.

Hispanic growth and concentration. According to the United States Census Bureau and published sources, the Hispanic population:

� totaled 41.8 million, or 14.1% of the total U.S. population, in 2005, an increase of approximately 17.4% from 35.6 million or 12.6%
of the total U.S. population in 2000;
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� is expected to grow to 102.6 million, or 24.4% of the total U.S. population, by 2050, an increase of 66.9 million, or 187.4%, between
2000 and 2050; and

� is relatively young, with 80% of U.S. Hispanics under age 45, compared to less than 72% of non-Hispanics, and with a median age
of 27, compared to 36 for the rest of the population.

In addition, 81% of all Hispanics in the United States live in 10 states, which makes Hispanics in the United States an attractive demographic
group for advertisers, enabling them to deliver messages cost effectively to a highly targeted audience.

2
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Hispanic use of the Internet. According to eMarketer, in 2005, Hispanics represented 8% of all Internet users in the United States, totaling
15.7 million Internet users. Furthermore, according to The Media Audit, a report that tracks national surveys, nearly half of all Hispanic adults
access the Internet on a regular basis, and 53.4% of Hispanics who use the Internet frequently report household income of $50,000 or more,
compared to only 43.3% of users overall.

Increasing Hispanic purchasing power. The purchasing power of Hispanic households is rapidly increasing. According to estimates by
HispanTelligence(R), based on an analysis of the United States Bureau of Economic Analysis figures, Hispanic purchasing power increased to
nearly $770 billion in 2005 and is projected to reach as much as $1.1 trillion by 2010. In addition, HispanTelligence(R) estimates that current
Hispanic purchasing power is 8.9% of total purchasing power in the United States and will reach 10.9% by 2010.

Market Opportunity

We are committed to providing a comprehensive set of Internet marketing solutions for advertisers. We believe there is ongoing growth in the
online advertising market and an increasing shift in advertisers� use of online media as audiences shift toward the Internet from traditional media:

� According to the Interactive Advertising Bureau and PricewaterhouseCoopers, online advertising sales totaled $3.6 billion in the
fourth quarter of 2005, the highest revenue quarter reported to date. This represented an increase of 34% over the fourth quarter of
2004. Additionally, the Interactive Advertising Bureau reports revenue for the full-year 2005 totaled just under $12.6 billion � a 31%
increase over full-year 2004 ($9.6 billion).

� Morgan Stanley estimates that the global market for display & sponsorship and rich media advertising will grow at a compound
annual growth rate of 22% from $4.1 billion in 2005 to approximately $11.3 billion in 2010.

� According to eMarketer Research, online video advertising spending will grow at a compound annual growth rate of 57.2% from
approximately $385 million in 2006 to approximately $2.4 billion by 2010. Further, social media and online video are demonstrating
the strongest growth as users are gravitating toward experiences rich in self-actualization, community, and on-demand video.
According to AlwaysOn, among users under the age of 25, 62% of Internet content consumed is user-generated.

� According to IDC, global consumer ecommerce sales grew 46% in 2005 to $3.8 trillion from $2.6 trillion in 2004. IDC estimates that
global ecommerce sales will increase to $8.5 trillion by 2009, a compound annual growth rate of 22%.

We are committed to capitalizing on this shift and helping our advertisers create and execute Internet marketing solutions that both encourage
our users to interact with our advertisers� brands as well as provide valuable insights into their customer base.

Although businesses have many online advertising options, we believe that there are only limited opportunities available to effectively reach the
rapidly growing Hispanic online population. We believe that the traditional advertising agency approach to Hispanic marketing is too slow and
costly to effectively reach this population in light of rapidly evolving online marketing trends. We believe we are among the first technology
companies to develop, deploy and promote cost effective, performance-based online marketing solutions for the Spanish language market. We
utilize our continuing research of the Hispanic marketplace and our understanding of our users and their interests to offer a suite of targeted
marketing services for our advertisers to meet the full range of their needs from brand building, to consumer awareness, direct marketing, lead
generation and commerce services.

3
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In addition, we offer all of our services in both English and Spanish, which we believe provides great value to advertisers seeking to reach the
Hispanic audience. According to published sources, approximately 90% of Hispanic adults in the United States speak Spanish at home.
Moreover, Hispanics in the United States are expected to continue to speak Spanish because:

� Approximately two-thirds were born outside the U.S.;

� Hispanic immigration is continuing;

� Hispanics generally seek to preserve their cultural identity; and

� Hispanic population concentration encourages communication in Spanish.
Products and Services

Products and services for businesses. We offer performance-based marketing capabilities that consist of Internet and categorized directory
search. Our offerings enable marketers to display their advertisements in different formats and in different locations on our website. Advertisers
can display graphical advertisements on our website on the pages that are viewed by our users. For example, if a user is reading an article about
fashion, he or she may be presented with advertising links to fashion-related websites. We work with our advertisers to maximize the
effectiveness of their campaigns by optimizing advertisement formats and placement on the website. We also use our targeting capabilities to
help advertisers reach their desired audiences by placing contextually relevant advertisements on our pages.

We also provide advertising services through search offerings that enable advertisers to display text-based links to their websites on our website.
These advertisements are displayed in response to different user actions, such as when a keyword is used in a search query initiated by a user.
For example, using performance-based marketing software which we have developed, when queried, our search engine will display a selection
of websites related to that query. Our advertisers will be able to determine where in our search results their website link will appear for any given
query through our proprietary ranking algorithms. We deliver search results from our own proprietary technology, as well as the aggregation of
results from leading search engines on a contractual basis. We offer search services through our own website, as well as through the websites of
distribution partners.

For these performance-based advertising services, we earn revenue as follows:

� For graphical advertising, we earn revenue when an advertiser purchases advertising space within our website and �impressions� are
delivered. An �impression� is delivered when an advertisement appears in pages viewed by users. We recognize such revenue ratably
over the contract period.

� For search advertising, we earn revenue when �click-throughs� occur. A �click-through� occurs when a user clicks on an advertiser�s
listing.

Through our pay-per-click services, advertisers place campaigns within our directory in categories that are relevant to their product or service,
which are then marketed to our consumers. In many instances, our staff proactively manages the translation of these advertising campaigns from
English to Spanish, as well as the intricacies and ongoing maintenance of the bilingual campaigns. We believe we are the only search engine
marketer to currently provide bilingual search, directory and campaign management solutions with a specific focus on the Hispanic Internet user.
In order to generate significant revenue, we must continue to evolve our information retrieval and management software infrastructure and then
direct our marketing to customers who provide information retrieval capabilities to their end-users.

We recently introduced our Quepasa Market Intelligence (�QMI�) service offering. QMI is a market research/political polling service that provides
subscribers with real-time access to the opinions of our community members. We market the QMI service to corporations for consumer product
research and political campaigns that seek leading edge insights into Hispanic public opinion. The service also benefits our Hispanic community
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members by giving them a valued voice in commercial and political matters.

Products and services for community members. Our offerings to users of our website include bilingual products and services that promote social
interaction, information sharing, and other topics of high importance to Hispanic users, including blogs, chat, culturally relevant channels, email,
message boards, news, postcards, radio, user forums, and video. We offer some services free of
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charge to our users and also provide some of our services on a fee or subscription basis. These products and services provide communication and
content services to users that extend a wide range of our services beyond the browser and across a variety of devices and also provide our users
with the opportunity to discover, connect and interact with other users who share similar interests and ideas.

For example, our Quepasa Mobile Entertainment offering facilitates the distribution of more than 5,000 ringtones, wallpapers, and related
mobile telephone products across multiple carrier networks. Ringtone categories include Latin, Latin Rock, Reggaeton, Pop, Hip Hop, Hard
Rock, and other contemporary channels and can be purchased on a single ringtone basis or as part of a subscription offering that allows the user
to download a number of ringtones per month. Our email service is a free service available in English and Spanish that provides users with a
full-featured email experience including spam and virus protection, significant free storage and attachment size capacity, advanced search
capabilities, and robust address book functionality. Our photo sharing services make it easy for people to upload, store and share their photos for
free, and to share their pictures with friends instantly using email.

Technology Services. We recently entered into a Corporate Sponsorship and Management Services Agreement with Mexicans & Americans
Thinking Together Foundation, Inc., a non-profit affiliate of Mexicans & Americans Trading Together, Inc. The agreement provides that the
Company will develop, operate and host the foundation�s website and provide to the foundation all services necessary to conduct such operations.
During the first three years of the term of the agreement, the foundation will reimburse us for our costs and expenses in providing these services,
not to exceed $500,000 per annum. The agreement further provides that we will pay the foundation�s operating costs, up to a maximum of
$1,200,000 per annum minus our costs and expenses for providing the services to the foundation described above. The foundation�s obligations
to pay any costs and expenses due us under the agreement are guaranteed by Mexicans & Americans Trading Together, Inc.

On February 7, 2007, the Company purchased certain assets of corazones.com. We acquired all existing registered users, the domains
corazones.com and corazonesdemexico.com, the existing operating system including the interface, administrative and billing systems and the
related logos and trademarks of the associated properties.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our marketing services to businesses through both online and direct channels. Our online channel is fulfilled by a self-service program
that enables advertisers to place targeted text based links to their websites on our website. Our direct advertising sales team focuses on selling
our marketing services and solutions to leading advertising agencies and marketers in the United States, Mexico and Latin America. In 2006,
three customers represented 38% of our total revenue.

We employ sales professionals in New York, New York and Miami, Florida. Our sales organization consults regularly with agencies and
advertisers on design and placement of online advertising, and provides customers with measurements and analyses of advertising effectiveness
as well as effective consumer insights that can be turned into marketing campaigns.

With respect to our users, our sales and marketing activities are focused on developing the Quepasa brand within the Hispanic community in
order to gain a competitive advantage that will enable us to attract, retain, and more deeply engage users and advertisers. We believe that our
ability to obtain and retain users is also related to our technology and the speed at which users can navigate our website. In that regard, we have
heavily invested in our technology, and believe that our website performs in a manner comparable to the leading online companies in the world.

Product Development

We continually seek to enhance and expand our existing offerings and develop new offerings to meet evolving user needs for technological
innovation and a deeper, more integrated user experience. We perform research to address fundamental problems facing users, such as making
their search for information on the Internet easier and more efficient, bringing them tools to help solve their problems, finding new and better
ways for them to connect and communicate with family and friends, and guiding family and friends
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towards high-quality products, songs, movies, and other resources. We also help advertisers connect with customers most likely to be interested
in their products, maximizing the advertisers� marketing investments and providing a better overall user experience. Among our recently
introduced products are the Quepasa Mobile Entertainment and Quepasa Market Intelligence services described above. We have developed
internally, acquired or licensed the products and services we offer.

During 2006, we made a number of strategic changes to the Quepasa website including a redesign of our homepage and site navigation to better
align our content delivery to user experience. We launched a number of content channels to increase the number of content offerings to our
members. In addition, we invested in new hardware and systems to provide increased scalability of our offerings to our expanding user base.

In January 2007, we hired a Chief Technology Officer to lead the development and enhancement of our new products and services. In addition,
the CTO will hire the requisite personnel to enhance the features and functionality of our website and related properties in order meet the
increasing demand for the offerings by our users and advertisers.

In 2007, we intend to increase our investment in product development by launching a number of content offerings, increasing our technical staff
and resources needed to develop and incorporate products and services offerings.

Intellectual Property

We create, own and maintain a wide array of intellectual properties that we believe are valuable to the Company. Our intellectual property
includes patents and patent applications related to our innovations, products and services; trademarks related to our brands, products and
services; copyrights in software and creative content; trade secrets; and other intellectual property rights and licenses of various kinds. We seek
to protect our intellectual property assets through patent, copyright, trade secret, trademark and other laws of the United States and other
countries of the world, and through contractual provisions. We enter into confidentiality and invention assignment agreements with our
employees and contractors, and non-disclosure agreements with third parties with whom we conduct business in order to limit access to, and
disclosure of, our proprietary information.

We consider the Quepasa trademark and our related trademarks to be valuable to the Company and we have registered these trademarks in the
United States and other countries throughout the world and aggressively seek to protect them. We have licensed in the past, and expect that we
may license in the future, certain of our proprietary rights, such as trademark, patent, copyright and trade secret rights to third parties.

In February 2007, we acquired the assets of corazones.com, a leading bi-lingual online dating website designed for Hispanic users. As a result of
the purchase, we acquired approximately 300,000 active new members and the features and functionality of the website. Corazones.com offers
features to our users that complement our social network suite of products and services.

Competition

The market for Internet products, services, advertising and commerce is intensely competitive, and we expect that competition will continue to
intensify. We believe that the principal competitive factors in these markets are name recognition, distribution arrangements, functionality,
performance, ease of use, the number of value-added services and features, and quality of support. Our primary competitors are other companies
providing portal and online community services, especially to the Spanish-language Internet users, such as Yahoo!Español, America Online
Latin America and Terra.com.

In addition, a number of companies offering Internet products and services, including our direct competitors, recently began integrating multiple
features within the products and services they offer to users. Integration of Internet products and services is occurring through development of
competing products and through acquisitions of, or entering into joint ventures and/or licensing arrangements involving other, Internet
companies and our competitors.
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Many large media companies have developed or are developing Internet navigation services to become �gateway� sites for web users. As these
companies develop such portal or community sites, we could lose a substantial portion of our user traffic. Further, entities that sponsor or
maintain high-traffic websites or that provide an initial point of entry for Internet viewers, such as the Regional Bell Operating Companies or
Internet service providers, such as Microsoft and America Online, currently offer and can be expected to consider further development,
acquisition or licensing of Internet search and navigation functions. These functions may be competitive with those that we offer.

Most of our existing competitors, as well as new competitors such as Spanish-language media companies, other portals, communities and
Internet industry consolidators, have significantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. Many of our competitors offer
Internet products and services that are superior to ours and achieve greater market acceptance. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
compete successfully against current or future competitors or that competition will not have a material adverse affect on our business.

Employees

As of April 13, 2007, we employed approximately 51 individuals in Sonora, Mexico and 26 individuals, including our executive officers, in the
U.S, none of whom is represented by a labor union. Our future success is substantially dependent on the performance of our senior management
and key technical personnel, and our continuing ability to attract and retain highly qualified technical and managerial personnel.

Executive Officers of the Company

Name Age Position
Officer or

Director Since

Robert B. Stearns 54 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors 2006

Charles B. Mathews 43 Chief Financial Officer 2004

Douglas A. Gray 43 Chief Technology Officer 2007
Robert B. Stearns has been our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since March 2006. From January 2002 to March 2006, Mr. Stearns was
President of Progo Communications, LLC, a communications company that provided presentations and business development tools to
enterprises. From May 2000 to January 2002, Mr. Stearns served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Vascular Genetics, Inc., a
development company for gene therapy related to heart conditions. From July 1998 to October 1999, Mr. Stearns served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Pacificare Health Systems, Inc. a leading health insurance provider. Mr. Stearns has an A.B. in
Government from Harvard University, an M.B.A. from University of Chicago Graduate School of Business, and a J.D. from DePaul University
College of Law.

Charles B. Mathews has been our Chief Financial Officer since March 2004. From January 2000 until March 2004, Mr. Mathews was the
managing member of Mathews & Mann, LLC, an accounting and business consulting firm located in Phoenix, Arizona. Mr. Mathews, a
Certified Public Accountant, has a B.A. in Business Administration from Alaska Pacific University, and an M.B.A. from Arizona State
University.

Douglas A. Gray has been our Chief Technology Officer since January 2007. From October 2006 to January 2007, Mr. Gray has provided
technology related consulting services. From September 2005 to October 2006, Mr. Gray served as interim Executive Vice President of
Operations for Trio Industries, a building materials manufacturing company. From April 2005 to September 2005, Mr. Gray provided
investment banking related consulting services. From January 2003 to April 2005, Mr. Gray held senior level positions with Network Associates
and BMC Software, Inc., a software manufacturing company. Mr. Gray has a B.S in Mathematical Sciences from Loyola College, an M.S. in
Operations Research from Georgia Institute of Technology�s School of Industrial & Systems Engineering and an M.B.A. from Southern
Methodist University�s Cox School of Business.
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The present term of office for the officers named above will generally expire on the earliest of their retirement, resignation or removal. There is
no family relationship among any such officers.

Risk Factors

This Annual Report on Form 10-KSB includes �forward-looking statements,� as that term is defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included or incorporated in this
Form 10-KSB could be deemed forward-looking statements, particularly statements about our plans, strategies and prospects under the headings
�Management�s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation� and �Description of Business.� Forward-looking statements are often characterized by
the use of words such as �believes,� �estimates,� �expects,� �projects,� �may,� �will,� �intends,� �plans,� or �anticipates,� or by discussions of strategy, plans or
intentions. All forward-looking statements in this Form 10-KSB are made based on our current expectations and estimates, and involve risks,
uncertainties and other factors that could cause results or events to differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements.

Among these factors are, as discussed more below, our ongoing operating losses, the possibility of liability for information displayed or accessed
via our website and for other commerce related activities, competition in the operation of our website and in the provision of our information
retrieval services, the ability to protect our intellectual property rights, the ability to retain our executive officers and senior management, the
ability to raise additional capital, changing laws, rules, and regulations, potential liability for breaches of security on the Internet, dependence on
third party databases and computer systems, competition from traditional media companies, and new technologies that could block our ability to
advertise. Additional factors that could affect our future results or events are described from time to time in our Securities and Exchange
Commission reports. See in particular the description of risks and uncertainties that is set forth below and similar disclosures in subsequently
filed reports. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. We assume no obligation to update such
information.

You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below and other information in this Form 10-KSB and subsequent reports
filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission before making any investment decision with respect to our securities. If any
of the following risks or uncertainties actually occurs or continues, our business, financial condition or operating results could be materially
adversely affected, the trading prices of our securities could decline, and you could lose all or part of your investment. All forward-looking
statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement.

Risks and Uncertainties

We have incurred ongoing operating losses and cannot assure we will be profitable in the future.

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had revenue of $395 thousand and $765 thousand, respectively, and incurred net losses of
$11.4 million and $3.0 million, respectively. We are not currently generating sufficient revenue to reach profitability nor can there be any
assurance that we will generate sufficient revenue in the future. We cannot assure that we will be profitable in the future and continued losses
could cause us to limit our operations in order to preserve working capital.

We may face liability for information displayed on or accessible via our website, and for other content and commerce-related activities,
which could reduce our net worth and working capital and increase our operating losses.

Because materials may be downloaded by the services that we operate or facilitate and the materials may be subsequently distributed to others,
we could face claims for errors, defamation, negligence or copyright or trademark infringement based on the nature and content of such
materials, which could adversely affect our financial condition. Even to the extent that claims made against us do not result in liability, we may
incur substantial costs in investigating and defending such claims.
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We may be subjected to claims for defamation, negligence, copyright or trademark infringement or based on other theories relating to the
information we publish on our website. These types of claims have been brought, sometimes successfully, against marketing and media
companies in the past. We may be subject to liability based on statements made and actions taken as a result of participation in our chat rooms or
as a result of materials posted by members on bulletin boards on our website. Based on links we provide to third-party websites, we could also
be subjected to claims based upon online content we do not control that is accessible from our website.

Although we carry general liability insurance, our insurance may not cover all potential claims to which we are exposed or may not be adequate
to indemnify us for all liabilities that may be imposed. Any imposition of liability that is not covered by insurance or is in excess of insurance
coverage would reduce our net worth and working capital and increase our operating losses.

Competition in the operation of our website and in the provision of our information retrieval services could cause us to reduce our prices or
increase our marketing costs.

Our website, Quepasa.com, competes with a number of other Spanish speaking websites, including websites offered by large multinational
Internet companies such as Yahoo! Inc. Moreover, we compete with a number of companies that provide information retrieval services, most of
which have operated retrieval services in the market for a longer period, are better known, have greater financial resources, have established
marketing relationships with leading online services and advertisers and have secured greater presence in distribution channels. The level of
competition could cause us to reduce our prices or increase our marketing costs, either of which would reduce our profitability or increase our
losses.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights, we may be unable to compete with competitors developing similar technologies.

Our success and ability to compete are often dependent upon internally developed software technology that we are developing in connection
with the quepasa.com website and our search retrieval services. While we rely on copyright, trade secret and trademark law to protect our
technology, we believe that factors such as the technological and creative skills of our personnel, new product developments, frequent product
enhancements and reliable product maintenance are more essential to establishing a technology leadership position. There can be no assurance
that others will not develop technologies that are similar or superior to our technology. Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights,
unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our technology, making it more difficult for us to compete.

The loss of the services of our executive officers and senior management would disrupt our operations and interfere with our ability to
compete.

We depend upon the continued contributions of our executive officers and senior management. We have employment agreements with these
individuals, but do not carry key person life insurance on any of their lives. The loss of services of any of these individuals could disrupt our
operations and interfere with our ability to compete with others.

If we need and are unable to raise additional capital, we may be unable to maintain our operations.

We may need to raise additional funds in the future through debt or equity financings in order to remain in business or to expand our operations.
If additional funds are raised through the issuance of equity securities, the percentage ownership of our then current stockholders will be
reduced, and such equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of the holders of our common stock. There can be
no assurance that additional financing will be available on terms favorable to us, or at all. If adequate funds are not available or are not available
on acceptable terms, we may be unable to maintain our operations.
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Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties could increase the regulation of our business and therefore increase our
operating costs.

Unfavorable changes in existing, or the promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations applicable to us and our businesses, including those
relating to the Internet, online commerce, the regulation of adware and other downloadable applications, broadband and telephony services,
consumer protection and privacy, including requirements for criminal background checks for subscribers to online dating services, and sales,
use, value-added and other taxes, could decrease demand for products and services, increase costs and/or subject us to additional liabilities,
which could adversely affect our business. There is, and will likely continue to be, an increasing number of laws and regulations pertaining to
the Internet, online commerce, the neutrality of the Internet as a network, liability for information retrieved from or transmitted over the Internet,
user privacy, taxation and the quality of products and services, all of which could increase our operating costs.

We also face risks due to a failure to enforce or legislate existing laws, rules, and regulations, particularly in the area of network neutrality,
where governments might fail to protect the Internet�s basic neutrality as to the services and sites that users can access through the network. Such
a failure could limit our ability to innovate and deliver new features and services, which could harm our business.

There are also legislative proposals pending before the United States Congress and various state legislative bodies regarding online privacy, data
security and regulation of adware and other downloadable applications, and the continued growth and development of online commerce may
continue to prompt calls for more stringent consumer protection laws, which may impose additional cost and burdens on us and online
businesses generally.

In addition, the application of various domestic and international sales, use, value-added and other tax laws, rules and regulations to our
historical and new products and services is subject to interpretation by the applicable taxing authorities. While we believe that we are generally
compliant with these tax provisions, there can be no assurances that taxing authorities will not take a contrary position, or that such positions
will not increase our tax liability and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We could face liability for breaches of security on the Internet.

To the extent that our activities or the activities of third-party contractors involve the storage and transmission of information, such as credit card
numbers, social security numbers or other personal information, security breaches could disrupt our business, damage our reputation and expose
us to a risk of loss or litigation and possible liability. We could be liable for claims based on unauthorized purchases with credit card
information, impersonation or other similar fraud claims. We could also be liable for claims relating to security breaches under recently-enacted
or future data breach legislation. These claims could result in substantial costs and a diversion of our management�s attention and resources.

We are dependent on third party databases and computer systems.

We depend on the delivery of information over the Internet, a medium that depends on information contained primarily in electronic format, in
databases and computer systems maintained by third parties and us. A disruption of third-party systems or our systems interacting with these
third-party systems could prevent us from delivering services in a timely manner, which could have a material adverse affect on our business and
results of operations.

We face competition from traditional media companies, and we may not be included in the advertising budgets of large advertisers, which
could harm our operating results.

In addition to Internet companies, we face competition from companies that offer traditional media advertising opportunities. Most large
advertisers have set advertising budgets, a portion of which is allocated to Internet advertising. We expect that large advertisers will continue to
focus most of their advertising efforts on traditional media. If we fail to convince these companies to spend a portion of their advertising budgets
with us, or if our existing advertisers reduce the amount they spend on our programs, our operating results would be harmed.
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New technologies could block our ads, which would harm our business.

Technologies may be developed that can block the display of our ads. Most of our revenues are derived from fees paid to us by advertisers in
connection with the display of ads on web pages. As a result, ad-blocking technology could, in the future, adversely affect our operating results.

Item 2. Description of Properties.
Our headquarters are located in Scottsdale, Arizona and consists of approximately 15,931 square feet of office space which is leased with a three
year term ending in May 2009. We also have leased offices located in New York, New York, and Miami, Florida. Our datacenter is operated in
Tempe, Arizona, and our technical operations are provided in leased offices located in Hermosillo, Mexico. We believe that our existing
facilities are adequate to meet current requirements, and that suitable additional or substitute space will be available as needed to accommodate
any further physical expansion of operations and for any additional sales offices.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
On March 14, 2005, Mr. Craig Behar filed a complaint against the Company in Maricopa County Superior Court (case no. CV2005-004439) in
Phoenix, Arizona. The complaint contains allegations of breach of contract and unpaid wages and seeks damages under various causes of action
in amounts up to $311,400. The Company has reviewed Mr. Behar�s complaint with its counsel and finds the claims to be wholly without merit
and intends to vigorously defend against them. Moreover, management believes that the amount of damages claimed by Mr. Behar have been
grossly overstated in an attempt to induce the Company to settle the action rather than to proceed to litigation.

In addition, we are party to certain other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course and are incidental to our business. Although litigation
is inherently uncertain, based on past experience, our management does not believe that the currently pending and threatened litigation or claims
will have a material adverse effect on the Company�s consolidated financial position or results of operations. However, future events or
circumstances, currently unknown to management, will determine whether the resolution of pending or threatened litigation or claims will
ultimately have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, liquidity or results of operations in any future reporting periods.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
None.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Small Business Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Our common stock has been listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market (formerly the NASDAQ SmallCap Market) under the symbol �QPSA� since
October 24, 2006. For the three years prior to that time, our common stock was listed on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol
�QPSA.� The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of our common stock for each calendar quarter indicated:

Stock Price
High Low

2006
First Quarter $ 4.33 $ 2.55
Second Quarter $ 8.55 $ 4.08
Third Quarter $ 9.25 $ 5.40
Fourth Quarter $ 12.45 $ 7.30
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Stock Price
High Low

2005
First Quarter $ 3.96 $ 1.91
Second Quarter $ 2.33 $ 0.91
Third Quarter $ 4.09 $ 2.00
Fourth Quarter $ 4.05 $ 2.45

As of April 13, 2007, we had approximately 5,000 holders of record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our inception and we do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. Any dividends that we may pay in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on our future
earnings, any applicable regulatory considerations, our financial requirements and other similarly unpredictable factors. For the foreseeable
future, we anticipate that we will retain any earnings that we may generate from our operations to finance our growth.

Item 6. Management�s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.
You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our audited historical consolidated financial statements, which are included
elsewhere in this Form 10-KSB. Management�s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation contains statements that are forward-looking.
These statements are based on current expectations and assumptions, which are subject to risk, uncertainties and other factors. Actual results
may differ materially because of the factors discussed in the subsection titled �Risk Factors,� located in Part I, Item 1, of this Form 10-KSB.

Company Overview

Quepasa.com is one of the largest and longest-established, bicultural, Hispanic online communities. We seek to entertain, enrich, and empower
the members of our rapidly growing Internet community. Our interactive website delivers content, products, and services to our users in both
English and Spanish. We focus our business on our online social network which is comprised chiefly of Hispanic and Latino 18-to-34 year olds
living in the United States and in Central and South America.

In our new business model we intend to provide an increasing array of services to our website visitors that are designed to promote social
interaction and information sharing. These products are designed to attract and adhere traffic to our website. Our intention during 2007 is to
introduce a variety of products and services that grow and produce positive cash flows. We expect these products and services to drive visitors to
our website. As traffic grows, we expect an increasing number of major consumer product firms, healthcare providers, financial institutions, and
other enterprises seeking a nexus with the emerging Hispanic market. We intend to actively pursue such advertising by mounting a sales
program targeting large advertising agencies and their clients.

During 2006, we obtained gross proceeds of $17.1 million from equity financing agreements and the exercise of common stock options and
warrants. During 2005, we obtained gross proceeds of $1.1 million from the exercise of common stock options and warrants. We believe that our
current cash balances, cash generated from our operations, and our financing activities are sufficient to finance our level of operations through
the next twelve months.

During 2006, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Mexicans & Americans Trading Together, Inc. (�MATT Inc.�) pursuant to
which we issued 1,000,000 shares of our common stock to MATT Inc. at a purchase price of $10.00 per share (for an aggregate purchase price
of $10,000,000). MATT Inc. was also granted a warrant to purchase 1,000,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $12.50 per
share and a warrant to purchase 1,000,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $15.00 per share. The exercise prices for the
warrants are subject to adjustment (although not below $10.00 per share) based on the level of advertising and other commercial revenues
generated by the investor for our benefit.
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During 2006, in connection with a financing transaction, we entered into a Corporate Sponsorship and Management Services Agreement with
Mexicans & Americans Thinking Together Foundation, Inc., (�MATT�), a non-profit affiliate of Mexicans & Americans Trading Together, Inc.
The agreement provides that the Company will develop, operate and host the foundation�s website and provide to the foundation all services
necessary to conduct such operations. During the first three years of the term of the agreement, the foundation will reimburse us for our costs
and expenses in providing these services, not to exceed $500 thousand per annum. The agreement further provides that we will pay the
foundation�s operating costs through October 16, up to a maximum of $1.2 million per annum minus our costs and expenses for providing the
services to the foundation described above. The foundation�s obligations to pay any costs and expenses due us under the agreement are
guaranteed by Mexicans & Americans Trading Together, Inc.

Our operating expenses mainly consist of search services, sales and marketing, product and content development, general and administrative
expenses, and depreciation and amortization.

Revenue sources

During 2006, our revenue was primarily generated from three principal sources: revenue earned from �performance based� insertion of results
from our directory and search engine based on proprietary technologies, revenue earned from the Google AdSense program and the sale of
banner advertising on our website.

Performance-based Revenue. Performance-based revenue, or paid search results, is generated when an Internet user searches for a keyword and
clicks on an advertiser�s listing on our website. Performance-based revenue is recognized in the period in which the �click-throughs�
occur. �Click-throughs� are defined as the number of times a user clicks on an advertisement or search result. Performance-based revenue is
recognized when there is evidence that the qualifying transactions have occurred at a set price.

Banner Advertising Revenue. Banner revenue is generated when an advertiser purchases a banner placement within our quepasa.com website.
We recognize revenue related to banner advertisements upon delivery.

Google AdSense Revenue. Google AdSense revenue is generated when a Quepasa.com user clicks on a Google advertiser through either the
displayed advertisements associated with content or by utilizing the Google search feature. We recognize revenue from Google AdSense in the
period it is reported by Google.

Summary

The majority of our revenues correlate to the number and activity level of users across our offerings on our website. In 2006 we redesigned and
enhanced our website to provide a more relevant and easier to use user experience. We believe that enhancing the user experience leads to a
more valuable experience to both our users and advertisers and provides additional opportunities to introduce users to our products and services.
By providing a more robust community experience while providing continued new products and services, we seek to become an essential part of
our users� online experience. We believe this deeper engagement of new and existing users and our website design, coupled with the growth of
the Internet as an advertising medium will increase our revenues in 2007.

Operating Expenses

Our principal operating expenses consist of:

� search services expenses;

� product and content development expenses;
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� sales and marketing expenses;

� general and administrative expenses; and

� depreciation and amortization.
Search Services Expenses. Our search services expenses consist of payments made to our affiliates and partners that have either integrated our
performance based search services into their sites or provided traffic to our directory listings. There are generally two economic structures of the
affiliate and partner agreements: fixed payments based on a minimum amount of traffic delivered and variable payments based on the amount of
searches or paid clicks associated with affiliate or partner traffic. We expense search services costs under two methods; fixed payments are
expensed pro-rata over the term of the agreement and agreements based on a percentage of revenue are expensed based on the underlying
revenue multiplied by the agreed upon rate.

Product and Content Development Expenses. Product and content development expenses consist of personnel costs associated with the
development, testing and upgrading of our website and systems, purchases of content and specific technology, particularly our search engine
software, and telecommunications links access charges.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and expenses of marketing and sales personnel, and
other marketing-related expenses including our mass media-based branding and advertising.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of costs related to corporate personnel, occupancy
costs, general operating costs and corporate professional fee expenses, such as legal and accounting fees. As we move forward with our new
business model, we anticipate an increase in general operating expenses, specifically, administrative salaries and content fees and we anticipate a
decrease in certain expenses, specifically, professional fees related to costs associated with business advisory services and financial consulting
services.

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Our depreciation and amortization expenses have consisted primarily of depreciation related to our
property and equipment.

Other Income (Expense). Other income (expense) consists primarily of interest earned, net of interest expense. We have invested our cash in
money market funds and interest bearing checking and saving accounts, including cash and cash equivalents, which are subject to minimal credit
and market risk.

Results of Operations

2006 Compared to 2005

Our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were characterized by expenses that significantly exceeded revenues
during the periods. We reported a net loss of $11.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to a net loss of $3.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we incurred $7.3 million in expenses related to issuance of stock
options and warrants. In addition, we focused on enhancing our new business model. As a result, we increased our product development related
expenses by approximately $660 thousand.

Revenues

We generated $395 thousand of revenue in 2006, a decrease of $370 thousand or 48 percent from the $765 thousand of revenue generated in
2005. In order to generate significant revenue under the new business model, we must continue to enhance the development and marketing of
our search and retrieval software. In 2006, our revenue was primarily generated from paid search results.
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Performance Based Revenue. Performance based revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased by approximately $343 thousand, or
58 percent, as compared to the prior year. During 2006, we shifted our business model from the less profitable performance based revenue to a
more profitable banner advertising revenue model. As of December 31, 2006, we have discontinued our performance based services. During the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, performance based revenue accounted for 63 percent and 77 percent of total revenue, respectively.

Banner Advertising Revenue. Banner advertising revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased by approximately $4 thousand, or 295
percent, compared to the prior year. We currently expect banner advertising revenue to increase in absolute dollars for 2007 compared to 2006 as
we increase our user base and activity levels on our website. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, banner advertising revenue
accounted for approximately 22 percent and 11 percent of total revenue, respectively.

Google AdSense. Google AdSense revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased by approximately $31 thousand, or 35 percent, as
compared to the prior year as a result of the increased traffic on our website. We currently expect Google AdSense revenue to increase in
absolute dollars for 2007 compared to 2006 as we increase our user base and activity levels on our website. For the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, Google AdSense revenue accounted for approximately 15 percent and 12 percent of total revenue, respectively.

Operating Costs and Expenses

Search Services. Search services expenses decreased $315 thousand, or 60 percent, to $211 thousand, from $526 thousand for the prior year.
This change is attributable to a decrease in our expenses related to online distribution agreements and corresponds to the decreases in
performance based revenue during the year.

We do not intend to incur any search services expenses during 2007 as a result of the changes in our new business model.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expense increased $120 thousand, or 28 percent, to $555 thousand, from $435 thousand for the prior
year. During 2006, as a result of the change in our business model away from performance based revenue to focus more on banner advertising
and content ad placements, we had increases in marketing expenses associated with acquiring traffic. These increases are partially offset by a
decrease in commission expense related to the decline in revenue. In addition, for the majority of 2006, we had a significantly reduced sales and
marketing department as we transitioned to the new business model.

We currently believe that sales and marketing expenses will increase in 2007 compared to 2006, as we continue to grow and expand our reach to
advertisers and users.

Product and Content Development. Product and content development expenses increased $660 thousand, or 118 percent, to $1.2 million from
$561 thousand for the prior year. This increase is attributable to changes in our technology and development staff. Quepasa.com de Mexico
provides substantially all of our design, translation services, and website management and development services for us.

We currently believe that product and content development expenses will increase significantly in 2007 compared to 2006, as we continue to
invest in our infrastructure and personnel to provide an enhanced product to our users and advertisers.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation related expenses (including stock-based
compensation), content fees, advertising expense and professional fees.

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $7.8 million, or 372 percent, to $9.9 million, from $2.1
million for the prior year.
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The increases in general and administrative expenses for 2006 compared to the prior year are principally attributable to the following areas:

� An increase in stock-based compensation of $7.1 million, to $7.3 million from $247 thousand for the prior year. This increase is
made up of $5.6 million related to warrants issued for strategic initiatives including acquiring the services of the Company�s Chief
Executive Officer and $1.5 million related to employee and non-employee stock options.

� An increase in general and administrative salaries of $400 thousand, or 94 percent, to $825 thousand, from $425 thousand for the
prior year. This increase is driven by our increased staffing during 2006 as we build and enhance our business products, services and
accounting functions.

� An increase in professional fees expense of $372 thousand, or 47 percent, to $1.2 million, from $794 thousand for the prior year.
This increase is attributable to the increased level of outside professional services we required in order to enhance our compliance
and corporate governance, technology infrastructure and other legal and professional matters.

� An increase in content fees of $223 thousand, or 314 percent, to $294 thousand from $71 thousand for the prior year. This increase is
driven by the costs associated with delivering an increased array of content to our users.

� An increase in travel and entertainment of $135 thousand, or 196 percent, to $204 thousand from $69 thousand for the prior year, an
increase in dues and subscriptions of $180 thousand, or 419 percent, to $223 thousand from $43 thousand for the prior year and an
increase in advertising expense of $90 thousand, or 51 percent, to $267 thousand from $177 thousand for the prior year. These
increases are attributable to our overall growth as we build and enhance our business.

We currently believe that general and administrative expenses, excluding non-recurring stock-based compensation charges, will increase in 2007
compared to 2006, as we continue to invest in our infrastructure to support our continued business expansion.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $23 thousand, or 22 percent, to $129 thousand from $106
thousand for the prior year. This increase is attributable to the depreciation associated with recent capital purchases as of December 31, 2006 and
approximately $21 thousand in amortization expense related to corporate jet rights received as part of the agreement with MATT.

We have purchased and expect to continue purchasing the capital equipment we need to sustain and build our infrastructure as our user growth
and product requirements expand. As a result, we expect depreciation and amortization expense to increase in 2007 and beyond as we invest in
capital equipment related to our enterprise growth.

Other Income (Expense). Other income (expense) primarily consists of interest income offset by interest expense. Other income for the year
ended December 31, 2006 increased $189 thousand to $195 thousand from $6 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increased
income is mainly attributable to the additional interest earned on cash and investments.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of and for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006:

2006 2005
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,093,811 $ 1,441,889

Percentage of total assets 88% 84%

Net cash used in operating activities $ (3,983,769) $ (2,692,407)
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We have substantial capital resource requirements and have generated significant losses since our inception. At December 31, 2006, we had
$14.1 million in cash and cash equivalents compared to $1.4 million at December 31, 2005.

We invest excess cash predominately in marketable securities that are liquid. We also invest excess cash to support our growing infrastructure
needs and to expand our operations.

During 2006, we obtained gross proceeds of $17 million from equity financing agreements and the exercise of common stock options and
warrants. During 2005, we obtained gross proceeds of $1.1 million from the exercise of common stock options and warrants. We believe that our
current cash balances, cash generated from our operations, and our financing activities are sufficient to finance our level of operations through
the next twelve months.

Cash flow changes

Cash used in operating activities is driven by our net loss, adjusted for non-cash items. Non-cash adjustments include depreciation, warrants
issued for strategic initiatives, including an executive acquisition and other stock-based compensation expense. Net cash used in operations was
$4.0 million in 2006 compared to $2.7 million in 2005. In 2006, net cash used by operations consisted of a net loss of $11.4 million offset by
non-cash expenses of $129 thousand in depreciation and amortization, $5.6 million related to the issuance of common stock warrants for
strategic initiatives, including an executive acquisition and $1.7 million related to the issuance of common stock options and warrants for
compensation. Net cash used by operations in 2005 consisted of a net loss of $3.0 million offset by non-cash expenses of $106 thousand in
depreciation and amortization plus $397 thousand related to the issuance of stock and stock options for professional services, and $115 thousand
related to the issuance of stock required in an offering.

Net cash used in investing activities is primarily attributable to capital expenditures. Our capital expenditures were $521 thousand in 2006,
compared to capital expenditures of $45 thousand in 2005. The increase in 2006 was a result of our purchase of certain hardware to support our
expanding operations.

Net cash provided by financing activities is driven by our financing activities related to a private placement and option and warrant exercises.
Our cash proceeds from a common stock private placement were $9.6 million, net of finders fees and related costs of raising capital, in 2006.
Cash proceeds from the exercise of stock options and warrants were $7.5 million in 2006, compared to $1.1 million in 2005.

Financing

In July 2006, we received net cash proceeds of $2.9 million from a warrant exercise related to the first series of warrants issued in March 2006.

In October 2006, we completed a private offering of 1,000,000 shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares of our
common stock to a single accredited investor, Mexicans & Americans Trading Together, Inc. The net cash proceeds from this private offering
was $10 million, less finders fees and other costs of raising capital of $434 thousand.

In addition, during 2006, we received $4.6 million from the exercise of stock options and warrants.
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Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures have generally been comprised of purchases of computer hardware, software, server equipment, furniture and fixtures.
Capital expenditures were $521 thousand in 2006, compared to $45 thousand in 2005. Our capital expenditures in 2007 are expected to increase
compared to 2006 levels as we continue to invest in the expansion of our product and services offerings. We anticipate that this increased level
of expenditure, together with the increase in operating lease commitments, our increased headcount and operational expansion, will continue in
the future as business conditions merit.

On November 20, 2006, in connection with a financing transaction, the Company entered into a Corporate Sponsorship and Management
Services Agreement (the �CSMSA�) with an investor and a foundation formed and controlled by the investor (the �Organization�) The CSMSA
provides that the Company will develop, operate and host the Organization�s website and provide to it all the services necessary to conduct such
operations. During the first three years of the term of the CSMSA, the Organization will reimburse the Company for its costs and expenses in
providing these services, not to exceed $500,000 per annum. The CSMSA further provides that the Company will pay the Organization�s
operating costs through October 2016 (including certain special event costs commencing in year four), up to a cap of $1.2 million per annum
minus the Company�s costs and expenses for providing the services described above.

Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these
consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various
other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

An accounting policy is considered to be critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about matters that are
highly uncertain at the time the estimates are made, and if different estimates that reasonably could have been used, or changes in the accounting
estimates that are reasonably likely to occur, could materially impact the consolidated financial statements. We believe the following critical
accounting policies reflect the more significant estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense.

Effective January 1, 2006 we adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective method and therefore have not restated prior years� results.
Under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R, we recognize stock-based compensation for employee stock options and recognize
compensation cost for those shares expected to vest over the service period of the award. Prior to SFAS 123R adoption, we accounted for
share-based payments under APB 25 and accordingly, generally recognized stock-based compensation expense related to restricted stock
awards.

The fair values of share-based payments are estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model that uses weighted
average assumptions. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company�s common stock. The Company has elected to use the
simplified method described in Staff Accounting Bulletin 107, �Share-Based Payment,� to estimate the expected term of employee stock options.
The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.

The expected volatility is calculated using historical volatility. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based awards
represent our best estimates, but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, if
factors change and we use different assumptions, our stock-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. See Note 1 �
�Stock Based Compensation� and Note 5 � �1998 Stock Option Plan� in the consolidated financial statements for additional information.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued a revision of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123, �Share-Based Payment� (�SFAS123R�). This statement revises FASB Statement No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation� and
requires companies to recognize the cost of employee stock options and other awards of stock-based compensation based on the fair value of the
award as of the grant date. The pro forma disclosures previously permitted under SFAS 123 no longer will be an alternative to financial
statement recognition. This statement supersedes Accounting Principles Board (�APB�) Opinion No. 25, which allowed companies to compute
compensation cost for each employee stock option granted as the amount by which the quoted market price of the common stock on the date of
grant exceeds the amount the employee must pay to acquire the stock. The Company accounted for its stock option and stock-based
compensation plans using the intrinsic-value method under APB Opinion No. 25. SFAS123R is effective as of the beginning of the first interim
or annual period that begins after June 15, 2006. As of December 31, 2006, all of the outstanding options were fully vested and will not have an
effect on future periods. For a discussion of the pro forma effect on the Company�s earnings for the year ended December 31, 2005, had
compensation cost for our stock-based compensation plans been recognized based on fair values as of the dates of grant, see �1998 Stock Option
Plan� in Note 5 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, �Accounting Changes and Error Corrections� (�SFAS 154�) which replaces Accounting
Principles Board Opinions No. 20 �Accounting Changes� and SFAS No. 3, �Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements �
An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 28.� SFAS 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of accounting changes and error
corrections. It establishes retrospective application, or the latest practicable date, as the required method for reporting a change in accounting
principle and the reporting of a correction of an error. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2005 and was required to be adopted by the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (�SFAS 157�), which clarifies the definition of fair value,
establishes guidelines for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements. SFAS 157 does not require any new
fair value measurements and eliminates inconsistencies in guidance found in various prior accounting pronouncements. SFAS 157 will be
effective for us on January 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 157 but does not believe that the
adoption of SFAS 157 will have a material impact on our financial position, cash flows, or results of operations.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) released Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, �Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements� (�SAB 108�). SAB 108 provides interpretive
guidance on the SEC�s views on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be considered in quantifying a
current year misstatement. The Company adopted SAB 108 during the fourth quarter of 2006. The adoption did not have a material impact on
the Company�s consolidated financial position, cash flows or results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109� (�FIN 48�), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions. This Interpretation requires that the Company
recognize in its financial statements the impact of a tax position if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the
technical merits of the position. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for the Company on January 1, 2007, with the cumulative effect of the
change in accounting principle, if any, recorded as an adjustment to opening accumulated deficit. We are currently evaluating the impact of
adopting FIN 48 on the Company�s consolidated financial position, cash flows, and results of operations.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Stockholders

Quepasa Corporation and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Quepasa Corporation and Subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of December 31,
2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders� equity and cash flows for the year
then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Quepasa Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006, and the consolidated results of its operations and cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), �Share-Based
Payment,� on January 1, 2006.

/s/ Perelson Weiner LLP

New York, New York

April 17, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Quepasa Corporation and Subsidiary

Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders� equity and cash
flows of Quepasa Corporation and Subsidiary for the year ended December 31, 2005. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial
reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over
financial reporting. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash
flows of Quepasa Corporation and Subsidiary for the year ended December 31, 2005 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

/s/ Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC
Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC

March 22, 2006

Denver, Colorado
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QUEPASA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31, 2006
ASSETS $ 14,093,811
CURRENT ASSETS: $ 14,093,811
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,093,811
Accounts receivable - trade 74,355
Other current assets 332,478

Total current assets 14,500,644
Property and equipment - net 546,481
Jet rights - net 986,457
Other assets 55,102

Total assets $ 16,088,684

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 711,486
Accrued expenses 92,070
Unearned grant income 94,980

Total current liabilities 898,536

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 4)
STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; authorized - 5,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding - none
Common stock, $0.001 par value; authorized - 50,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding - 11,705,861 shares 11,706
Additional paid-in capital 141,114,562
Accumulated deficit (125,937,617)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 1,497

Total stockholders� equity 15,190,148

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 16,088,684

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.
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QUEPASA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005

REVENUES $ 395,432 $ 765,492

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Search services 210,832 526,336
Sales and marketing 555,073 435,090
Product and content development 1,221,505 561,378
General and administrative 9,923,527 2,100,838
Depreciation and amortization 129,043 106,269

12,039,980 3,729,911

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (11,644,548) (2,964,419)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest income 195,125 7,921
Interest expense (1,871) (2,387)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment (6,926) �  
Other income 8,736 �  

TOTAL OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 195,064 5,534

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (11,449,484) (2,958,885)
Income taxes �  �  

NET LOSS (11,449,484) (2,958,885)
Preferred stock dividends �  (13,383)

Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (11,449,484) $ (2,972,268)

NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE, BASIC AND DILUTED $ (1.26) $ (0.41)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING, BASIC AND DILUTED 9,063,947 7,266,511

NET LOSS $ (11,449,484) $ (2,958,885)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 7,208 4,306
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS $ (11,442,276) $ (2,954,579)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.
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QUEPASA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders� Equity

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Preferred
Stock

Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock Common Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income
(loss)

Total

Stockholders�
EquitySharesAmountShares Amount Shares Amount

Balance�December
31, 2004 �  $ �  3,337 $ 217,855 6,851,395 $ 6,852 $ 113,856,594 $ (111,515,865) $ (10,017) $ 2,555,419
Issuance of stock
options for
professional services �  �  �  �  �  �  247,447 �  �  247,447
Issuance of common
stock for cash, net of
offering costs of
$65,000 �  �  �  �  293,333 293 634,706 �  �  634,999
Issuance of common
stock for preferred
stock dividends �  �  �  �  50,919 51 62,579 (13,383) �  49,247
Issuance of
additional common
stock for extension
of offering �  �  �  �  50,780 51 114,712 �  �  114,763
Issuance of common
stock for
professional services �  �  �  �  25,000 25 51,225 �  �  51,250
Issuance of common
stock related to
settlement of lawsuit �  �  �  �  39,295 39 98,199 �  �  98,238
Conversion of
preferred stock to
common stock �  �  (3,337) (217,855) 271,299 271 217,584 �  �  �  
Exercise of stock
options �  �  �  �  15,000 15 20,985 �  �  21,000
Exercise of warrants �  �  �  �  235,000 235 469,765 �  �  470,000
Foreign currency
translation
adjustment �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  4,306 4,306
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  �  (2,958,885) �  (2,958,885)

Balance�December
31, 2005 �  �  �  �  7,832,021 7,832 115,773,796 (114,488,133) (5,711) 1,287,784
Issuance of stock
options for
compensation �  �  �  �  �  �  1,144,205 �  �  1,144,205
Issuance of warrants
for compensation �  �  �  �  �  �  530,331 �  �  530,331
Issuance of warrants
for strategic
initiatives �  �  �  �  �  �  5,608,093 �  �  5,608,093
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Issuance of stock
options for
professional services �  �  �  �  �  �  11,411 �  �  11,411
Exercise of stock
options �  �  �  �  908,500 909 1,332,441 �  �  1,333,350
Exercise of warrants �  �  �  �  1,965,340 1,965 6,142,069 �  �  6,144,034
Issuance of common
stock �  �  �  �  1,000,000 1,000 10,572,216 �  �  10,573,216
Foreign currency
translation
adjustment �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  7,208 7,208
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  �  (11,449,484) �  (11,449,484)

Balance�December
31, 2006 �  $ �  �  $ �  11,705,861 $ 11,706 $ 141,114,562 $ (125,937,617) $ 1,497 $ 15,190,148

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.
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QUEPASA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2006 2005
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (11,449,484) $ (2,958,885)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 129,043 106,269
Issuance of warrants for strategic initiatives 5,608,093 �  
Issuance of additional common stock required for extension of offering �  114,763
Issuance of stock options and warrants for compensation 1,674,536 �  
Issuance of common stock and stock options for professional services and settlement of lawsuit 11,411 396,935
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 6,926 �  
Forgiveness of forgivable loans �  13,000
Grant income (8,201) �  
Bad debt expense �  21,508
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - trade (22,170) (69,803)
Other current assets and other assets (341,694) 43
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 615,634 (359,312)
Deferred revenue (207,863) 43,075

Net cash used in operating activities (3,983,769) (2,692,407)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of notes receivable �  (13,000)
Disposal of property and equipment 32,162 �  
Purchase of property and equipment (521,227) (44,507)

Net cash used in investing activities (489,065) (57,507)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants 7,477,384 1,125,999
Net proceeds from the issuance of common stock 9,565,771 �  
Grant proceeds 103,181 �  
Payments on long-term debt (28,788) (8,073)

Net cash provided by financing activities 17,117,548 1,117,926

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate on cash 7,208 4,306

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,651,922 (1,627,682)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,441,889 3,069,571

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD $ 14,093,811 $ 1,441,889

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,871 $ 2,387

Cash paid for income taxes $ �  $ �  
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.
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(Continued from the previous page)

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company had the following transactions:

� The Company received jet rights with a fair value of $1,007,445 in connection with a financing transaction. See Common Stock
section of Note 5.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company had the following transactions:

� The Company issued 40,045 shares of common stock valued at $49,247 for preferred stock dividends, of which $49,247 had been
recorded as an accrued dividend at December 31, 2004.

� Certain stockholders converted 3,337 shares of preferred stock valued at $217,855 for 271,299 common shares.

� The Company issued 10,874 shares of common stock valued at $13,383 for preferred stock dividends.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.
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QUEPASA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1�Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Quepasa Corporation (the �Company�), a Nevada corporation, was incorporated in June 1997. The Company is a Spanish/English language
Internet portal and online community targeting the U.S. Hispanic and Latin American markets. The Company�s web site provides users search
engine capabilities and performance based marketing applications as well as traditional portal services centered around the Spanish market. The
Quepasa.com web site is operated and managed by the Company�s majority owned Mexico-based subsidiary, Quepasa.com de Mexico. Because
the language preference of many U.S. Hispanics is English, it also offers users the ability to access information and services in the English
language.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts in the statements of operations and comprehensive loss have been reclassified to conform to the current year�s
presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash
equivalents. The Company continually monitors its positions with, and the credit quality of, the financial institutions it invests with. Periodically
throughout the year, the Company has maintained balances in various operating accounts in excess of federally insured limits. As of
December 31, 2006, domestic bank balances exceeded federally insured limits by approximately $14,282,000.

Accounts Receivable - Trade

The Company extends credit on a non-collateralized basis primarily to customers who are located in the United States. The Company performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers� financial condition as part of its decision to provide credit terms. The Company estimates the level of
accounts receivable which will ultimately not be paid and historically has not experienced significant credit losses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of improvements that extend the life of property and equipment
are capitalized. All ordinary repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Software 2 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Vehicles 5 years
Office furniture and equipment 5 years
Other equipment 3 years
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Jet Rights

Jet rights are stated at fair value less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided using the straight-line method over the ten year term of
the rights. See Common Stock section in Note 5.

Unearned Grant Income

Unearned grant income represents the unamortized portion of a cash grant received from the Mexican government for approved capital
expenditures. The grant is being recognized into other income on the accompanying statements of operations on a straight-line basis over the
useful lives of the purchased assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company�s foreign subsidiaries is the local currency. The financial statements of these subsidiaries are translated
to United States dollars using period-end rates of exchange for assets and liabilities and average quarterly rates of exchange for revenues and
expenses. Translation gains (losses) are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as a component of stockholders� equity. Net
gains and losses resulting from foreign exchange transactions are included in other income (expense).

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue on arrangements in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104,
�Revenue Recognition,� and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 00-21, �Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.� In all cases, revenue is
recognized only when the price is fixed or determinable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, and collectibility
of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

Revenue is primarily generated from performance based search advertisements, Google AdSense and banner advertisements. The Company
recognizes revenue related to banner advertisements upon delivery. Performance based search revenue is recognized in the period in which the
�click-throughs� occur. �Click-throughs� are defined as the number of times an Internet user clicks on an advertisement or search result.
Performance based revenue is recognized when there is evidence that the qualifying transactions have occurred. Google AdSense revenue is
recognized in the period in which it is reported by Google.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method to account for income taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes are determined based on the
differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements which will result in
taxable or deductible amounts in future years and are measured using the currently enacted tax rates and laws. A valuation allowance is provided
to reduce net deferred tax assets to the amount that, based on available evidence, is more likely than not to be realized.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was approximately
$267,000 and $177,000, respectively.
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Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes all changes in stockholders� equity during a period from non-owner sources. Comprehensive income
(loss) for the Company consists of foreign currency translation adjustments which are added to net loss to compute total comprehensive loss.

Loss Per Share

Loss per share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding during the applicable period. Diluted earnings per share is determined in the same manner as basic earnings per share, except
that the number of shares is increased to include potentially dilutive securities using the treasury stock method. Since the Company incurred a
net loss in all periods presented, all potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share since the effect of
including them is anti-dilutive.

The following table summarizes the number of diluted securities outstanding for each of the periods presented, but not included in the
calculation of diluted loss per share:

December 31,
2005 2006

Stock options 2,358,075 2,461,375
Warrants 4,438,900 1,194,240

Total 6,796,975 3,635,615

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
asset may not be recovered. For assets which are held and used in operations, the asset is deemed to be impaired if its carrying value exceeds its
estimated undiscounted future cash flows. If an impairment has occurred, the impairment loss recognized is the amount by which the carrying
value exceeds the fair value of the asset or estimated discounted future cash flows attributable to the asset.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses
approximated fair value as of December 31, 2006 because of the relatively short maturity of these instruments.

Product and Content Development Costs

Product and content development costs, including costs incurred in the classification and organization of listings within the Company�s website,
are charged to expense as incurred.

Software Development Costs

Software development costs incurred in the application development stage of a project are capitalized in property and equipment. Software
development costs incurred in the preliminary project and post implementation stages of an internal use software project are expensed as
incurred. To date, the Company has not capitalized any software development costs.
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Stock-Based Compensation

As permitted under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation� (�SFAS 123�), as
amended, until December 31, 2005, the Company accounted for its stock option plans under the recognition and measurement provisions of
APB Opinion No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees� (�APB 25�), and related interpretations. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment� (�SFAS 123(R)�), using the
modified-prospective transition method. Since all share-based payments made prior to January 1, 2006 were fully vested, compensation cost
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2006 represents the compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to
January 1, 2006 based upon the grant-date fair value using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Compensation expense is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award. Results for the prior years have not been restated.

Significant Customers

During 2006, three customers comprised 15%, 12%, and 11% of total revenues.

One customer comprised 62% of total accounts receivable as of December 31, 2006.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued SFAS No. 154, �Accounting Changes and Error Corrections�
(�SFAS 154�) which replaces Accounting Principles Board Opinions No. 20 �Accounting Changes� and SFAS No. 3, �Reporting Accounting
Changes in Interim Financial Statements � An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 28.� SFAS 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and
reporting of accounting changes and error corrections. It establishes retrospective application, or the latest practicable date, as the required
method for reporting a change in accounting principle and the reporting of a correction of an error. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes
and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005 and was adopted by the Company in the first quarter of fiscal
2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 154 did not have a material effect on the Company�s consolidated financial position, cash flows or results of
operations.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) released Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, �Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements� (�SAB 108�). SAB 108 provides interpretive
guidance on the SEC�s views on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be considered in quantifying a
current year misstatement. The Company adopted SAB 108 during the fourth quarter of 2006. The adoption did not have a material impact on
the Company�s consolidated financial position, cash flows or results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109� (�FIN 48�), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions. This Interpretation requires that the Company
recognize in its financial statements the impact of a tax position if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the
technical merits of the position. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for the Company on January 1, 2007, with the cumulative effect of the
change in accounting principle, if any, recorded as an adjustment to opening accumulated deficit. We are currently evaluating the impact of
adopting FIN 48 on the Company�s consolidated financial position, cash flows, and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (�SFAS 157�), which clarifies the definition of fair value,
establishes guidelines for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements. SFAS 157 does not require any new
fair value measurements and eliminates inconsistencies in guidance found in various prior accounting pronouncements. SFAS 157 will be
effective on January 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS 157 but does not believe that the adoption of
SFAS 157 will have any material impact on its consolidated financial position, cash flows, or results of operations.
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Note 2�Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2006:

Software $ 489,449
Computer equipment 668,806
Vehicles 15,781
Office furniture and equipment 150,312
Other equipment 10,038

1,334,386
Less accumulated depreciation (787,905)

Property and equipment�net $ 546,481

Depreciation expense is approximately $108,000 and $106,000 in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note 3�Jet Rights

Jet rights consist of the following at December 31, 2006:

Jet rights at fair value $ 1,007,445
Less: accumulated amortization (20,988)

Jet rights, net $ 986,457

Amortization expense is approximately $21,000 and $0 in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note 4�Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company leases its facilities under three non-cancelable operating leases which expire in 2007 and 2009. Rent expense is approximately
$180,000 and $184,000 in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under these leases as of December 31, 2006 are approximately as follows:

Year Ending December 31:
2007 $ 163,000
2008 109,000
2009 45,000

Total $ 317,000
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Corporate Sponsorship and Management Services Agreement

On November 20, 2006, in connection with a financing transaction, the Company entered into a Corporate Sponsorship and Management
Services Agreement (the �CSMSA�) with an investor and a foundation formed and controlled by the investor (the �Organization�). The CSMSA
provides that the Company will develop, operate and host the Organization�s website and provide to it all the services necessary to conduct such
operations. During the first three years of the term of the CSMSA, the Organization will reimburse the Company for its costs and expenses in
providing these services, not to exceed $500,000 per annum. The CSMSA further provides that the Company will pay the Organization�s
operating costs through October 2016 (including certain special event costs commencing in year four), up to a cap of $1,200,000 per annum
minus the Company�s costs and expenses for providing the services described above. The Organization�s obligations to pay any costs and
expenses due to the Company are guaranteed by the investor. See Common Stock section in Note 5.

Litigation

On March 14, 2005, Mr. Craig Behar filed a complaint against the Company in Maricopa County Superior Court (case no. CV2005-004439) in
Phoenix, Arizona. The complaint contains allegations of breach of contract and unpaid wages and seeks damages under various causes of action
in amounts up to $311,400. The Company has reviewed Mr. Behar�s complaint with its counsel and finds the claims to be wholly without merit
and intends to vigorously defend against them. Moreover, management believes that the amount of damages claimed by Mr. Behar have been
grossly overstated in an attempt to induce the Company to settle the action rather than to proceed to litigation.

In addition, the Company is a party to certain other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course and are incidental to its business. Although
litigation is inherently uncertain, based on past experience, management does not believe that the currently pending and threatened litigation or
claims will have a material adverse effect on the Company�s consolidated financial position, cash flows or results of operations. However, future
events or circumstances, currently unknown to management, will determine whether the resolution of pending or threatened litigation or claims
will ultimately have a material effect on the consolidated financial position, cash flows or results of operations in any future reporting periods.

Note 5�Stockholders� Equity

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value. Each share of preferred stock will be issued in a
series and shall have the voting rights and preferences determined at the time of issuance by the Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2006,
the Company has no preferred stock outstanding.

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

As of January 1, 2005, the Company had 3,337 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock (the �Preferred Stock�) outstanding. The Preferred
Stock accrues dividends to be paid semi-annually at a rate of 10% per annum in shares of the Company�s common stock, is convertible to
common stock at the option of the holder at any time at an equivalent common stock value, and is redeemable at the Company�s option on several
pre-established redemption dates. The Company also has the right to cause the holders of Preferred Stock to convert their holdings to common
stock at any time after the closing price of the Company�s common stock has closed at or above $1.95 per share for 20 consecutive trading days.

In January 2005, the Company issued 40,045 shares of common stock with a fair value of $49,247 on the date of issuance as preferred stock
dividends.

In July 2005, the Company issued 10,874 shares of common stock with a fair value of $13,383 on the date of issuance as payments of preferred
stock dividends accrued for as of December 31, 2004.
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In June 2005, the remaining 3,337 shares of Preferred Stock was converted into 271,299 shares of common stock with a fair value of $217,855.

Common Stock

In January 2005, the Company completed an offering of common stock, $0.001 par value, under a Selling Agreement, under which the Company
issued 80,000 units for proceeds of approximately $435,000, net of commissions of $65,000. Each unit is comprised of two shares of common
stock and one warrant for .4 of 1 share of common stock, resulting in the issuance of 160,000 shares of common stock, and 64,000 warrants. See
Warrants section in Note 5.

In July 2005, the Company issued 50,780 additional shares of common stock with a fair value of $114,763 on the date of issuance pursuant to
the terms of a private placement.

In July 2005, the Company issued 25,000 shares of common stock to a consultant with a fair value of $51,250 on the date of issuance for
professional services rendered.

In August 2005, the Company issued 39,295 shares of common stock with a fair value of $98,238 on the date of issuance in connection with the
settlement of a lawsuit.

In December 2005, the Company issued 133,333 shares of common stock for cash of approximately $200,000.

In October 2006, the Company entered into a series of transactions with an investor which culminated in the issuance of 1,000,000 shares of
common stock to the investor for proceeds of $10,000,000 pursuant to a private placement of the Company�s equity securities, net of a finders fee
of $300,000 paid to a related party and legal fees of $64,936. In connection with this transaction, the investor received two warrants to purchase
the Company�s common stock. Both warrants expire in October 2016. See Warrants section in Note 5.

In addition, the Company has agreed to develop, operate, and host a website for a foundation which was formed and controlled by the investor
and provide it with all necessary support services to operate the website through October 2016. The foundation will reimburse the Company for
the cost and expenses it incurs to provide these services during the first three years of the arrangement up to a maximum of $500,000 per annum.
The Company will fund the foundations� operating costs for the ten year term of the arrangement (including certain special event costs
commencing in year four) up to a maximum of $1,200,000 per annum. The net cash payments made by the Company to fund the operations of
the foundation will be recognized as a reduction in additional paid-in capital. During 2006, the Company made net cash payments of $69,293 to
the foundation.

The investor has agreed to provide the Company with the use of a corporate jet for up to 25 hours per year through October 2016. The Company
has recognized the fair value of the jet rights of $1,007,445 as an asset and an increase to additional paid-in capital.

Lastly, the investor has also agreed to assist the Company in generating future advertising revenue through October 2016 in exchange for sales
commissions payable in cash and the re-pricing of the investors� warrants. See Warrants section in Note 5. To date, the investor has not generated
any advertising revenue for the Company.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has 6,796,975 shares of common stock reserved for future issuance with respect to stock options and
warrants outstanding.

1998 Stock Option Plan

As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company�s loss before income taxes, loss from continuing operations, and net loss
for the year ended December 31, 2006 is $1,011,805 or $0.11 per share higher than if it had continued to account for stock-based compensation
under APB 25.
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The Company does not currently recognize income tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized
because of federal and state net operating loss carry forwards available to offset future federal and state taxable income. Accordingly, SFAS
123(R) did not have any impact on the Company�s consolidated statements of cash flows.

The following table illustrates the effect on net loss and loss per share of applying the fair value based method of accounting provisions of SFAS
123 to stock-based employee compensation for the year ended December 31, 2005:

For the Year Ended

December 31,

2005
Net loss - as reported $ (2,958,885)
Add back: stock-based compensation expense recognized, net of related tax effects �  
Pro forma effect of stock-based compensation expense determined under the fair value
method for all awards, net of related tax effects. (1,263,863)

Net loss � pro forma $ (4,222,748)

Basic and diluted loss per common share � as reported $ (.41)

Basic and diluted loss per common share � pro forma $ (.58)

In October 1998, the Company stockholders adopted and later amended the 1998 Stock Option Plan (the �1998 Plan�), which provides for the
granting of options to employees, officers, directors and consultants. The 1998 Plan permits the granting of incentive stock options meeting the
requirements of Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code as well as non-qualified stock options. The Company reserved 6,000,000 shares of
common stock to be granted under the 1998 Plan. Incentive stock options are issuable only to employees, while non-qualified options may be
issued to non-employee directors, consultants and others, as well as to employees.

Stock options granted pursuant to the 1998 Plan may not have an option price that is less than the fair market value of the Company�s common
stock on the date of grant. Incentive stock options granted to significant stockholders must have an exercise price of not less than 110% of the
fair market value of the Company�s common stock on the date of grant. Generally, options granted under the 1998 Plan vest ratably over a three
year service period and expire ten years from the date of the grant (or 90 days after the termination of employment). The Board of Directors of
the Company may modify the exercise price, vesting term and expiration date of the individual grants at their discretion.

The fair values of share-based payments are estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that uses the weighted
average assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company�s common stock. The
Company has elected to use the simplified method described in Staff Accounting Bulletin 107, �Share-Based Payment,� to estimate the expected
term of employee stock options. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.
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The fair value of each employee stock option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions:

For the Years Ended

December 31,
2006 2005

Risk-free interest rate: 4.6% 4.5%
Expected term: 6 years 7 years
Expected dividend yield: 0% 0%
Expected volatility: 98% 123%

A summary of employee stock option activity as of December 31, 2006, is as follows:

Options Number of Stock Options

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted-
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Term
(years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 2,211,375 $ 1.65
Granted 820,200 3.59
Exercised (758,500) 1.48
Forfeited or expired (25,000) 1.50

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 2,248,075 $ 2.42 $ 6.2 $ 104,500

Exercisable at December 31, 2006 1,822,078 $ 2.04 $ 5.4 $ 104,500

The weighted average grant date fair value of employee stock options granted by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2006 is
$3.00. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 is $90,400 and $0, respectively.

A summary of the status of the Company�s non-vested employee stock options as of December 31, 2006, and changes during the year ended
December 31, 2006, is presented below:

Number of
Non-vested
Stock
Options

Weighted
Average
Grant

Date Fair
Value

Non-vested stock options at December 31, 2005 �  $ �  
Granted 820,200 3.00
Vested (394,203) 2.69
Forfeited or expired �  �  

Non-vested stock options at December 31, 2006 425,997 $ 3.28

As of December 31, 2006, there was $1,315,948 in total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested employee stock options granted
under the 1998 Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.9 years.
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In May 2005, the Company issued stock options under the 1998 Plan to two consultants. The stock options entitled the consultants to purchase
150,000 and 100,000 shares of common stock at exercise prices of $1.40 and $1.50 per share, respectively. These stock options vest immediately
and terminate in 7 years. The stock option to purchase 150,000 shares of common stock was exercised in 2006. The stock option to purchase
100,000 shares of common stock is still outstanding at December 31, 2006. The fair value of the stock options of $247,447 is included in general
and administrative expenses on the accompanying statements of operations and has been determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate: 4.5%
Expected term: 7 years
Expected dividend yield: 0.00%
Expected volatility: 123%

In July 2006, the Company issued stock options under the 1998 Plan to a consultant. The stock options entitled the consultant to purchase 10,000
shares of common stock at an exercise price of $6.25 per share. These stock options vest 50% on each of the first two anniversary dates of the
grant and terminate in ten years. These stock options are still outstanding at December 31, 2006. The Company has recognized $11,411 of the
$51,031 fair value of the stock options in product and content development expenses on the accompanying statements of operations. The fair
value of the stock options has been determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate: 4.99%
Expected term: 6 years
Expected dividend yield: 0.00%
Expected volatility: 102%

Effective September 2006, assuming stockholder approval of the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (�2006 Plan�), no new awards will be available for
issuance under the 1998 Plan. As of December 31, 2006, there are a total of 2,358,075 stock options outstanding under the 1998 Plan including
2,248,075 to employees and 110,000 to consultants.

The Company recognized compensation expense of $1,144,205 and $0 in 2006 and 2005, respectively, under the 1998 Plan.

2006 Stock Incentive Plan

On September 19, 2006, the Board of Directors approved, subject to stockholder approval, the 2006 Plan. Under the terms of the 2006 Plan, the
Company may issue up to 3,700,000 shares of common stock plus an additional number of shares of common stock equal to the number of
shares previously granted under the 1998 Stock Option Plan that either terminate, expire, or lapse after the date of the Board of Directors�
approval of the 2006 Plan. Pursuant to the terms of the 2006 Plan, eligible individuals may be granted incentive stock options, non-qualified
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, or stock grant awards.

As of December 31, 2006, there were no stock options outstanding under the 2006 Plan.
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Warrants

In February, March and April 2004, the Company issued three warrant packages to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock each at exercise
prices of $1.50, $2.00, and $2.50 per share as compensation for financial advisory services. These warrants were exercised in 2006.

In May 2004, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 125,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share as
compensation for general business advisory services. These warrants were exercised in 2006.

In September 2004, the Company issued a warrant package to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock and 10,000 shares of common stock at
exercise prices of $2.00 and $2.60 per share, respectively, as compensation for services in connection with a financing transaction. These
warrants were exercised in 2006.

In September 2004, the Company issued warrants to purchase 250,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share to
investors in connection with a financing transaction. Warrants to purchase 235,000 shares of common stock were exercised in 2005 and the
remaining warrants were exercised in 2006.

In December 2004, the Company issued warrants to purchase 278,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $3.13 per share as
compensation for services in connection with a financing transaction. These warrants were exercised in 2006.

In December 2004, the Company issued warrants to purchase 342,240 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.50 per share to
investors in connection with a financing transaction. Warrants to purchase 335,840 shares of common stock were exercised in 2006. Warrants to
purchase 6,400 shares of common stock remain outstanding at December 31, 2006. These warrants were exercised in January 2007.

In January 2005, the Company issued warrants to purchase 64,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.50 per share to investors in
connection with a financing transaction. These warrants were exercised in 2006. See Common Stock section in Note 5.

In December 2005, the Company issued warrants to purchase 235,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share to
investors in exchange for the exercise of warrants to purchase 235,000 shares of common stock which were previously issued to the investors in
September 2004. Warrants to purchase 12,500 shares of common stock were exercised in 2006. Warrants to purchase 222,500 shares of common
stock remain outstanding at December 31, 2006 and expire in 2008.

In January 2006, the Company issued warrants to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share to an investor
in exchange for the exercise of warrants to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock which were previously issued to the investor in September
2004. These warrants are still outstanding at December 31, 2006 and expire in 2008.

In March 2006, the Company issued warrants to purchase 200,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $3.55 per share as
compensation to its Chief Executive Officer. These warrants are still outstanding on December 31, 2006 and expire in March 2016. The fair
value of these warrants of $530,331 was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the assumptions listed below and
recognized in general and administrative expenses on the accompanying statements of operations.

Risk-free interest rate: 4.68%
Expected term: 5 years
Expected dividend yield: 0.00%
Expected volatility: 95.63%
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During March 2006, the Company issued three series of warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of common stock each at exercise prices of
$2.87, $4.00, and $7.00 as compensation for certain strategic initiatives, including acquiring the services of the Company�s Chief Executive
Officer. The first warrant was exercised in 2006. The two remaining warrants are still outstanding at December 31, 2006 and expire in March
2016. The fair value of these warrants of $5,608,093 was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the assumptions listed
below and recognized in general and administrative expenses on the accompanying statements of operations.

Warrant #1 Warrants #2 and #3
Risk-free interest rate: 4.69% 4.68%
Expected term: 0.25 years 5 years
Expected dividend yield: 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility: 20.04% 95.63%

In October 2006, the Company issued two series of warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of common stock each at exercise prices of $12.50
and $15.00 per share to an investor in connection with the issuance of common stock. These warrants expire in October 2016 and are still
outstanding as of December 31, 2006. The warrants can be re-priced in accordance with a pre-determined formula down to a floor of $10.00 per
share if the holder generates future advertising revenue for the Company. See Common Stock section of Note 5.

Note 6�Income Taxes

The Company did not provide a current or deferred U.S. federal, state or foreign income tax provision or benefit for any of the periods presented
because it has experienced recurring operating losses. The Company has provided a full valuation allowance on the deferred tax assets,
consisting primarily of the net operating losses, because evidence does not indicate that the deferred tax assets will more likely than not be
realized.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had net operating losses of approximately $79,931,000 related to U.S. federal and state jurisdictions.
Utilization of the net operating losses, which expires at various times starting in 2012 through 2026, may be subject to certain limitations under
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and other limitations under state and foreign tax laws.

Actual income tax benefit differs from the amount calculated using the Federal statutory tax rate of 34% as follows:

2006 2005
U.S. federal income tax at statutory rate $ (3,893,000) $ (1,006,000)
Nondeductible expenses 1,925,000 27,000
Exercise of non-qualified stock options (1,624,000) �  
Change in valuation allowance 4,411,000 794,000
State tax benefit, net of federal provision (benefit) (484,000) (133,000)
Other (335,000) 318,000

Income tax expense $ �  $ �  

F-19

Edgar Filing: QUEPASA CORP - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 50



Table of Contents

Significant components of the Company�s deferred tax assets (liabilities) are approximately as follows:

December 31,
2006

Net operating loss $ 30,877,000
Deferred revenue 104,000
Property and equipment 8,000
Stock options and warrants 651,000
Other 9,000

Total deferred tax assets 31,649,000
Valuation allowance (31,649,000)

Net deferred tax assets $ �  

Note 7�Related Party Transactions

In October 2006, the Company paid a $300,000 finders fee to a member of its Board of Directors upon the consummation of a financing
transaction. See Common Stock section of Note 5.

A member of the Company�s Board of Directors is the Chief Executive Officer of a foundation which the Company has agreed to support
through October 2016. The Company has made net payments of $69,293 to this foundation in 2006. See Common Stock section of Note 5.

Note 8�Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company identified accounting errors related to its accounting for stock options and warrants during 2006.
Accordingly, the Company has restated its interim financial information for the first three quarters of 2006 in this annual report. The Company
revisited the assumptions applied in its valuation of certain warrants and stock option awards. Upon review of the assumptions applied during
2006, it was determined that certain assumptions related to the expected term and volatility used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model
needed correction. Also, the Company has restated its interim financial information for the third quarter of 2006 related to a grant of common
stock and stock options to a consultant that was rescinded in January 2007. These corrections resulted in a charge of approximately $4.9 million,
which resulted in an increase in net loss of approximately $4.9 million, or ($0.58) per share. In addition, the Company determined that certain
reclassifications between operating expense line items on the consolidated statements of operations were required for the first three quarters of
2006. These reclassifications had no effect on total operating expenses or net loss in 2006. The restatements had no effect on the Company�s cash
flows from operating, investing or financing activities for any of the quarters in 2006.

The following table summarizes the effects of the restatement on the Company�s interim financial information for the three months ended
March 31, 2006:

Previously
Reported

Total
Adjustments Restated
(Unaudited)

Loss from operations $ (2,172,554) $ (4,668,568) $ (6,841,122)
Net loss (2,164,774) (4,668,568) (6,833,342)
Loss per share (0.27) (0.60) (0.87)
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The following table summarizes the effects of the restatement on the Company�s interim financial information for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2006:

Previously
Reported

Total
Adjustments Restated
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended June 30, 2006:
Loss from operations $ (890,891) $ (174,899) $ (1,065,790)
Net loss (883,226) (174,899) (1,058,125)
Loss per share (0.11) (0.02) (0.13)
For the six months ended June 30, 2006:
Loss from operations (3,063,445) (4,843,467) (7,906,912)
Net loss (3,048,000) (4,843,467) (7,891,467)
Loss per share (0.38) (0.60) (0.98)
The following table summarizes the effects of the restatement on the Company�s interim financial information for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2006:

Previously
Reported

Total
Adjustments Restated
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended September 30, 2006:
Loss from operations $ (1,324,134) $ (28,175) $ (1,352,309)
Net loss (1,297,301) (28,175) (1,325,476)
Loss per share (0.14) (0.00) (0.14)
For the nine months ended September 30, 2006:
Loss from operations (4,387,579) (4,871,642) (9,259,221)
Net loss (4,345,301) (4,871,642) (9,216,943)
Loss per share (0.51) (0.58) (1.09)
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The following table summarizes the effects of the restatement and the 2006 reclassifications on the Company�s operating costs and expenses for
the periods shown:

Search
Services

Sales and
Marketing

Product and
Content

Development
General and
Administrative

Depreciation
and

Amortization Total
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended March 31, 2006:
Previously reported $ 118,152 $ 24,232 $ 41,809 $ 2,131,377 $ 21,549 $ 2,337,119
Total adjustments �  �  34,407 4,634,161 �  4,668,568
Total reclassifications �  26,438 105,761 (132,199) �  �  

Restated $ 118,152 $ 50,670 $ 181,977 $ 6,633,339 $ 21,549 $ 7,005,687

For the three months ended June 30, 2006:
Previously reported $ 47,178 $ 33,686 $ 76,562 $ 797,152 $ 20,220 $ 974,798
Total adjustments �  �  38,036 136,863 �  174,899
Total reclassifications �  55,308 116,433 (171,741) �  �  

Restated $ 47,178 $ 88,994 $ 231,031 $ 762,274 $ 20,220 $ 1,149,697

For the six months ended June 30, 2006:
Previously reported $ 165,330 $ 57,918 $ 118,371 $ 2,928,529 $ 41,769 $ 3,311,917
Total adjustments �  �  72,443 4,771,024 �  4,843,467
Total reclassifications �  81,746 222,194 (303,940) �  �  

Restated $ 165,330 $ 139,664 $ 413,008 $ 7,395,613 $ 41,769 $ 8,155,384

For the three months ended September 30, 2006:
Previously reported $ 34,812 $ 46,252 $ 101,474 $ 1,171,395 $ 23,914 $ 1,377,847
Total adjustments �  15,743 13,946 (1,514) �  28,175
Total reclassifications �  103,312 174,661 (277,973) �  �  

Restated $ 34,812 $ 165,307 $ 290,081 $ 891,908 $ 23,914 $ 1,406,022

For the nine months ended September 30, 2006:
Previously reported $ 200,142 $ 104,170 $ 219,845 $ 4,099,924 $ 65,683 $ 4,689,764
Total adjustments �  15,743 86,389 4,769,510 �  4,871,642
Total reclassifications �  185,058 396,855 (581,913) �  �  

Restated $ 200,142 $ 304,971 $ 703,089 $ 8,287,521 $ 65,683 $ 9,561,406
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The following table summarizes the effects of the restatement on the Company�s stockholders� equity for the periods shown:

Preferred
Stock

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Stockholders�

Equity
(Unaudited)

As of March 31, 2006:
Previously reported $ �  $ 8,082 $ 117,899,635 $ (116,652,907) $ (11,413) $ 1,243,397
Adjustments �  �  4,668,568 (4,668,568) �  �  

Restated $ �  $ 8,082 $ 122,568,203 $ (121,321,475) $ (11,413) $ 1,243,397

As of June 30, 2006:
Previously reported $ �  $ 8,520 $ 118,683,701 $ (117,536,133) $ (23,972) $ 1,132,116
Adjustments �  �  4,843,467 (4,843,467) �  �  

Restated $ �  $ 8,520 $ 123,527,168 $ (122,379,600) $ (23,972) $ 1,132,116

As of September 30, 2006:
Previously reported $ �  $ 9,754 $ 122,626,287 $ (118,833,434) $ (13,544) $ 3,789,063
Adjustments �  (10) 4,871,652 (4,871,642) �  �  

Restated $ �  $ 9,744 $ 127,497,939 $ (123,705,076) $ (13,544) $ 3,789,063

Note 9�Subsequent Events

On February 2, 2007, the Company amended the terms of one of its operating leases to occupy approximately 10,500 square feet of additional
office space. The lease, which commenced on March 1, 2007 and extends through May 31, 2009, obligates the Company to pay an additional
$470,659 in rent over the term of the lease.
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Item 8. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None

Item 8A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be
disclosed in reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the specified time periods and
accumulated and communicated to the Company�s management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company�s management, under the supervision and with the participation of its Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) promulgated under the
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that, as of that date, the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures required by paragraph (b) of 13a-15 or
15d-15 were not effective at the reasonable assurance level as a result of certain weaknesses in the Company�s internal control over financial
reporting, which the Company views as an integral part of its disclosure controls and procedures.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system�s
objectives will be met. The Company�s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, do not expect that the
Company�s disclosure controls will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there
are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have
been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more
people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future
conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with
associated policies or procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
during our fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

Remediation of Certain Weaknesses

During the financial reporting process for the fiscal year end December 31, 2006, certain weaknesses in the Company�s internal control over
financial reporting were identified, including inadequate documentation of policies, procedures, and internal controls; weaknesses in information
technology controls and procedures; a lack of sufficient accounting personnel and expertise to address the Company�s expanding and increasingly
complex financial reporting needs; and incorrect accounting treatment of certain expenses and equity issuances. See, for example, Note 8 to the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information about the Company�s revised accounting treatment for options and warrants issued in
connection with a March 2006 private placement.
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The Company is addressing these identified weaknesses by, among other things, conducting a search for additional and more experienced
accounting and finance staff to bolster the Company�s internal capabilities and expertise; recently hiring a Chief Technology Officer and outside
consultant to address information technology controls and procedures; increased oversight of the Company�s operations in Mexico; improving
the Company�s technology related to its business and operations; and undertaking to systemically resolve such weaknesses in consultation with
its independent auditor.

Management has augmented its internal accounting resources by using external resources in connection with its review and completion of the
financial reporting process for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. Management believes that there are no material inaccuracies or
omissions of material fact and, to the best of its knowledge, believes that the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2006, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations for the Company in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Item 8B. Other Information
None

PART III

Item 9. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters, Control Persons and Corporate Governance; Compliance with Section 16(a) of
the Exchange Act

The information under the subheading �Executive Officers of the Company� in Part I, Item I of this Form 10-KSB is incorporated by reference
into this section.

The following table sets forth information regarding our directors. Currently, all of the directors of our Board serve one-year terms and are
elected annually at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Name Age Position
Alonso Ancira 54 Director

Malcolm Jozoff 57 Director

Michael D. Matte 47 Director

Jeffrey S. Peterson 34 Director

Lionel Sosa 57 Director

Dr. Jill Syverson-Stork 53 Director
Alonso Ancira has been a director since November 2006. He has served as Chairman of the Board of Altos Hornos de México, S.A.B. de C.V.
(�AHMSA�), one of Mexico�s most prestigious industrial consortiums since April 2004, and of Mexicans & Americans Trading Together, Inc.
(�MATT Inc.�), a wholly owned subsidiary of AHMSA. From 1991 to April 2004, Mr. Ancira was Executive Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of AHMSA. He is currently President of Mexico�s Chamber of Iron and Steel, a position he had from 1993 to 1995, and again from 2003
to 2004. Recently Mr. Ancira was elected for a new term, from 2006 to 2007. Mr. Ancira has a law degree from the University of Anáhuac in
Mexico City and has completed and facilitated many professional seminars, including the Academy of International Commerce Arbitration.
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Malcolm Jozoff has been a director since January 2007. He has served as a corporate advisor to Otsuka Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a
pharmaceutical and consumer health products company, based in Tokyo, Japan since February 2004. From July 1996 to August 2000, Mr. Jozoff
was Chairman of the Board of Directors and President and Chief Executive Officer of The Dial Corporation, which markets Dial soaps, Purex
laundry detergents, Renuzit air fresheners, and Armour Star canned meats. From 1993 to 1995, Mr. Jozoff was Chief Executive Officer of
Lenox, Inc., a division of Brown-Forman, Inc., which markets fine consumer durable products such as Lenox china and crystal, Gorham silver,
Dansk home furnishings, and Hartmann luggage. From 1967 to 1991, Mr. Jozoff was employed by the Procter & Gamble Company, where he
served in various executive positions. Mr. Jozoff has a B.A. from Columbia University and is a retired Captain of the U.S. Air Force. In addition
to formerly chairing The Dial Corporation Board of Directors, Mr. Jozoff has been a director of Columbia Energy Group, Inc., Chemtrack, Inc.,
and several industry associations.

Michael D. Matte has been a director since July 2006. He has served as Chief Financial Officer of Cyberguard Corporation from February 2001
to April 2006. Prior to joining Cybergard Corporation, Mr. Matte was a Senior Audit Manager from 1981 to 1992 for Price Waterhouse.
Mr. Matte is a Certified Public Accountant and has a B.S. in Accounting from Florida State University.

Jeffrey S. Peterson has been a director since March 2002. Mr. Peterson is our founder and has been a director since March 2002. From March
2006 to November 2006, Mr. Peterson served as our Chief Technical Officer. From April 2002 to March 2006, Mr. Peterson served as our
Chairman of the Board of Directors. From July 2005 to March 2006 and from April 2002 to March 2005, Mr. Peterson also served as our Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Peterson served in various roles with the Company, after founding the Company in 1997 as our President. From May
1998 to June 1999, Mr. Peterson served as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. From July 1997 to May 1998, Mr. Peterson served as our
Chief Technical Officer.

Lionel Sosa has been a director since January 2007. He has served as Chief Executive Officer of MATT, Inc., a non-profit organization focused
on encouraging bicultural relations between Mexicans and Americans, from 2006 to the present. From July 1999 to 2006, Mr. Sosa operated
Lionel and Katherine Sosa, Inc., an advertising and consulting company. Currently, Mr. Sosa serves on the Board of Directors of the Public
Broadcasting Service (�PBS�), and serves on Eastman Kodak�s External Diversity Advisory Panel.

Dr. Syverson-Stork has been a director since January 2007. She has been a member of the Spanish Department at Wellesley College, from
September 1989 to the present, and is the Coordinator of Intermediate Spanish and the Director of the Spanish Language House and Cultural
Center. Dr. Syverson-Stork has a B.A. in Hispanic Studies from Smith College and a Masters and a Ph.D. in Romance Languages from Harvard
University.

There is no family relationship between any of our directors and/or executive officers.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers and Directors, and persons who own more than 10% of a registered class of
our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Commission. Executive officers, directors, and greater than
10% stockholders are required by Commission regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. Based solely on our
review of the copies of such forms received during the year ended December 31, 2006, we believe that, during such year our executive officers,
directors, and 10% stockholders complied with all such filing requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our Board of Directors consists of seven (7) members. Our Board of Directors has determined that four (4) directors, Dr. Syverson-Stork and
Messrs. Matte, Ancira, and Jozoff are independent under the standards specified by the Commission and applicable NASDAQ Marketplace
Rules.

The Company has an Audit Committee in accordance with section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. Members of the Audit Committee are
Dr. Syverson-Stork and Messrs. Matte and Jozoff. The Board has determined that each of the members of the Audit Committee is independent
within the meaning of commission rules and NASDAQ Marketplace Rules. Mr. Matte is the Chairman of

22

Edgar Filing: QUEPASA CORP - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 57



Table of Contents

the Audit Committee and has been determined by the Board to meet the qualifications of an �audit committee financial expert� in accordance with
Commission rules and similar financial sophistication rules under the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules. For additional information about the Audit
Committee see Item 12 � �Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors.�

Our Board of Directors has adopted charters for all of its committees describing the authority and responsibilities delegated to each committee
by the Board. Our Board of Directors has also adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics. We have posted on our corporate website at
www.quepasacorp.com: the charters of our Audit, Compensation, and Corporate Governance and Nominating committees; our Code of Conduct
and Ethics, and any amendments or waivers thereto; the recently adopted Statement of Policy on Related Party Transactions (the �Related Party
Transactions Policy�), and any other corporate governance materials contemplated by the Commission or NASDAQ regulations. These
documents are also available in print to any stockholder, at no cost, requesting a copy in writing from our corporate secretary at Quepasa
Corporation, Attention: Corporate Secretary, 7550 E. Redfield Rd., Suite A, Scottsdale, Arizona 85260.

Item 10. Executive Compensation
Summary Compensation Table

The following table provides certain summary information concerning the compensation earned by our principal executive officer, and each of
our other executive officers who earned at least $100,000 in total compensation (the �named executive officers�) during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006.

Name and
Principal Position Year Salary ($) Bonus ($)

Stock

Awards ($)

Option

Awards ($)(1)

Non-

Equity

Incentive Plan

Compensation ($)

Change in

Pension

Value and

Nonqualified

Deferred

Compensation

Earnings($)

All Other

Compensation ($)(2) Total ($)
Robert B. Stearns

Chief Executive
Officer 2006 0 0 0 695,498 0 0 530,331 1,225,829
Charles B. Mathews

Chief Financial
Officer 2006 90,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 90,000
Jeffrey S. Peterson(3)

Director 2006 0 0 0 0 0 0 250,000 250,000

(1) Amounts in this column represent the dollar amount recognized during 2006 for financial statement reporting purposes in accordance with
SFAS123R (but disregarding any estimate of forfeitures relating to service-based vesting conditions) relating to options.

(2) Amounts in this column consist of 200,000 warrants issued to Mr. Stearns, valued at $530,331 and a one time payment of $250,000 to
Mr. Peterson in accordance with his employment agreement.

(3) Mr. Peterson resigned as our Chief Executive Officer on March 21, 2006, and as an officer and employee of our Company on November 5,
2006.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table

Option Awards Stock Awards

Name

Grant

Date

Number of

Securities

Underlying

Unexercised

Options(#)

Exercisable

Number of

Securities

Underlying

Unexercised

Options(#)

Unexercisable

Equity

Incentive

Plan Awards:

Number of

Securities

Underlying

Unexercised

Unearned

Options(#)

Option

Exercise

Price($)

Option

Expiration

Date

Number of

Shares or

Units of

Stock That

Have Not

Vested(#)

Market

Value of

Shares or

Units of

Stock That

Have Not

Vested($)

Equity

Incentive

Plan Awards:

Number of

Unearned

Shares, Units
or Other

Rights That

Have Not

Vested(#)

Equity

Incentive

Plan Awards:

Market or

Payout Value

of Unearned

Shares, Units
or Other

Rights That

Have Not

Vested($)
Robert B. Stearns 3/21/2006 240,000 360,000 0 $ 3.55 3/21/2013 0 0 0 0
Charles B. Mathews 3/23/2004

5/11/2005
50,000
250,000

0
0

0
0
$
$
1.30
1.25

3/23/2011
5/11/2012

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Jeffrey S. Peterson 8/26/2003
5/11/2005

500,000
500,000

0
0

0
0
$
$
1.60
2.00

8/26/2010
5/11/2012

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

(1) All of the reported options, which were fully vested at December 31, 2006, vested as follows: Mr. Stearns� options vest monthly;
Mr. Mathews� March 23, 2004 options vested immediately and his May 11, 2005 options vested immediately; Mr. Peterson�s August 26,
2006 options vested immediately and his May 11, 2005 options vested immediately.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Name

Fees

Earned or

Paid in

Cash($)(1)

Stock

Awards($)(2)

Option

Awards($)

Non-Equity

Incentive Plan

Compensation($)

Change in

Pension Value

and

Nonqualified

Deferred

Compensation

Earnings

All Other

Compensation($) Total($)
Robert B. Stearns(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Jeffrey S. Peterson(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Alonso Ancira 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Michael D. Matte 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Lionel Sosa 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dr. Jill Syverson-Stork 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(1) This column is to include the compensation cost recognized for financial statement reporting purposes under SFAS 123R for 2006 with
respect to stock awards granted to directors. As described in the paragraph preceding this table, during 2006 our directors received grants
of unrestricted shares of common stock under the Quepasa Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the �2006 Plan�), subject to stockholder
approval of the 2006 Plan. Because these grants are subject to stockholder approval, the Company did not recognize any expense for the
grants during 2006. Assuming the stockholders approve the 2006 Plan, the Company will recognize expenses for these 2006 grants as of
the date of the 2007 Annual Meeting. Assuming the stock grants to directors during 2006 had not been subject to stockholder approval, the
Company would have recognized the following SFAS 123R expenses in this column for its directors for the indicated number of shares
granted: Mr. Ancira ($11,875, 1,250 shares); Mr. Peterson ($11,875, 1,250 shares); Mr. Matte ($46,475, 5,000 shares); Mr. Sosa ($23,258,
2,500 shares); and Dr. Syverson-Stork ($23,238, 2,500 shares).
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(2) Both Messrs. Stearns and Peterson are Named Executive Officers and their compensation is described above. Messrs. Stearns and Peterson
receive no additional compensation in connection with their service as a member of the Board of Directors.

Employees of our Company do not receive compensation for serving as members of our Board of Directors. Directors are reimbursed for
reasonable expenses incurred in attending meetings and carrying out duties as board and committee members. Our non-employee directors are
eligible to receive compensation for their services as directors, including stock options. On September 19, 2006, the Board of Directors, upon the
recommendation of the Compensation Committee, approved compensation to non-employee directors in the form of 1,250 shares of unrestricted
common stock of our Company to be granted on the last day of each fiscal quarter of our Company. This compensation will be paid pursuant to
the terms of the 2006 Plan, the effectiveness of which is subject to stockholder approval of the 2006 Plan. Furthermore, each chairman of a
committee of the Board of Directors is eligible to receive an additional 625 shares of our unrestricted common stock, subject to stockholder
approval of the 2006 Plan: (i) for each fiscal quarter of service as a chairman prior to January 20, 2007; and (ii) for each full fiscal quarter of
service ending after January 20, 2007, to be granted on the last day of each fiscal quarter of our Company.

Employment and Separation Agreements

Robert B. Stearns

Effective March 21, 2006, we entered into an employment agreement with Robert B. Stearns providing that he serve as Chairman of the Board
of Directors and Chief Executive Officer for an initial term of three (3) years. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Mr. Stearns was issued
options to purchase 180,000 shares of our common stock as compensation for his first year of employment. For the remaining two (2) years of
the agreement, Mr. Stearns� compensation shall be established before each anniversary date of the agreement by the Board of Directors or the
Compensation Committee. In addition, Mr. Stearns is entitled to participate in our stock option plan(s) and received an option to purchase an
additional 420,000 shares of our common stock. Mr. Stearns is entitled to participate in any management bonus program that we establish. The
agreement also provided Mr. Stearns with a warrant to purchase 200,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $3.55 per share. In
addition, Mr. Stearns is entitled to participate in all health, life, disability, and other insurance programs or benefits we may offer to other key
executive employees or members of the Board of Directors.

In the event Mr. Stearns� employment is terminated by us with cause, he shall be paid in a lump sum at the time of termination such amount of
compensation for services rendered, as well as compensation for unused vacation time and earned bonus, as has accrued but remains unpaid.
These same provisions will apply in the event Mr. Stearns terminates his employment after a change-of-control without good reason.

In the event Mr. Stearns terminates his employment with good reason or Mr. Stearns� employment is terminated by us without cause and other
than as a consequence of his death, disability, or normal retirement, then he will receive a lump sum in cash equal to any salary accrued but
unpaid and any amount of bonus accrued but unpaid. Mr. Stearns will also continue to receive coverage under his benefit plans for six
(6) months or until he becomes eligible to participate in the employee benefit plans of another employer. Any other awards previously made to
Mr. Stearns under compensation plans or programs and not previously paid will immediately vest on the date of termination and will be paid on
that date and included as compensation in the year paid. These same provisions will apply in the event Mr. Stearns� employment is terminated
within one (1) year following the occurrence of a change-of-control by us for any reason or by Mr. Stearns with good reason.

In the event Mr. Stearns terminates the agreement without good reason, he will receive a lump sum in cash equal to any salary which remains
accrued but unpaid and any amount of bonus accrued but unpaid. If Mr. Stearns retires, either voluntarily or as a result of reaching the age of
retirement, these same provisions will apply but he will also have the right to participate in any retirement plan we adopted with respect to
executive officers during the term of the agreement.
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In the event Mr. Stearns is terminated by reason of his death, we will pay his accrued but unpaid salary and a prorated amount of his targeted
bonus, plus three (3) additional months of fixed salary and targeted bonus. Mr. Stearns� eligible dependents will receive benefit plan coverage for
three (3) months from Mr. Stearns� death. Any other awards previously made to Mr. Stearns under compensation plans or programs and not
previously paid will immediately vest on the date of termination and will be paid on that date and included as compensation in the year paid.

In the event Mr. Stearns is terminated by us or if Mr. Stearns terminates his employment because of a disability, he will be paid his salary
accrued but unpaid. Mr. Stearns will also continue to receive coverage under his benefit plan for six (6) months or until he becomes eligible to
participate in the employee benefit plans of another employer. Any other awards previously made to Mr. Stearns under the compensation plans
or programs and not previously paid will immediately vest on the date of termination and will be paid on that date and included as compensation
in the year paid.

Stock Incentive Plans

In April 1999 our stockholders adopted the Quepasa Corporation Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Option Plan (the �1998 Plan�), as amended
which provides for the grant to employees, officers, directors and consultants of options to purchase up to an aggregate of 6,000,000 shares of
common stock, consisting of both �incentive stock options� within the meaning of Section 422A of the United States Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (the �Code�) and �non-qualified� options. Incentive stock options are issuable only to employees, while non-qualified options may be issued to
non-employee directors, consultants, and others, as well as to employees.

The 1998 Plan is administered by our Compensation Committee, which determines those individuals eligible to receive options, the time period
during which the options may be partially or fully exercised, the number of shares of common stock that may be purchased under each option,
and the option price.

The per share exercise price of the common stock subject to an incentive stock option or non-qualified option may not be less than the fair
market value of the common stock on the date the option is granted. The aggregate fair market value, determined as of the date the option is
granted, of the common stock that any employee may purchase in any calendar year pursuant to the exercise of incentive stock options may not
exceed $100,000. No person who owns, directly or indirectly, at the time of the granting of an incentive stock option to him, more than 10% of
the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock is eligible to receive any incentive stock options under the 1998 Plan unless the
exercise price is at least 110% of the fair market value of the common stock subject to the option, determined on the date of grant. Non-qualified
options are not subject to this limitation.

No incentive stock option may be transferred by an optionee other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and during the lifetime of
an optionee, the option will be exercisable only by him or her. In the event of termination of employment other than by death or disability, the
optionee has three (3) months after such termination during which he or she can exercise the option. Upon termination of employment of an
optionee by reason of death or permanent total disability, his or her option remains exercisable for one (1) year thereafter to the extent it was
exercisable on the date of such termination. No similar limitation applies to non-qualified options.

Options under the 1998 Plan must be granted within ten (10) years from the effective date. The incentive stock options granted under the 1998
Plan cannot be exercised more than ten (10) years from the date of grant except that incentive stock options issued to 10% or greater
stockholders are limited to five (5) year terms. All options granted under the 1998 Plan provide for the payment of the exercise price in cash or
by delivery to the Company of shares of common stock already owned by the optionee having a fair market value equal to the exercise price of
the options being exercised, or by a combination of such methods of payment. Therefore, an optionee may be able to tender shares of common
stock to purchase additional shares of common stock and may theoretically exercise all of his stock options with no additional investment other
than his original shares. Any unexercised options that expire or that terminate upon an optionee ceasing to be an officer, director, or an employee
become available once again for issuance under the 1998 Plan.

On September 19, 2006, the Board of Directors approved, subject to stockholder approval, the 2006 Plan. The 2006 Plan authorizes the issuance
of up to 500,000 shares, plus (i) the number of shares of stock available for grant pursuant to the 1998 Plan, as of the Effective Date were
3,641,925 shares, and (ii) the number of shares of stock underlying awards that were previously granted pursuant to the 1998 Plan and that either
terminate, expire, or lapse for any reason after the Effective Date. No additional grants have been made under the 1998 Plan since the Effective
Date. 518,500 shares underlying the 1998 Plan awards terminated, expired, or lapsed between the Effective Date and March 31, 2007, and
1,077,700 shares were reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding 1998
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Plan awards as of that same date. Assuming stockholder approval of the 2006 Plan, no new awards will be available for issuance under the 1998
Plan. Pursuant to the terms of the 2006 Plan, eligible individuals may be granted incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, or stock grant awards. The 2006 Plan is designed to promote the success and enhance the value of our
Company by linking the personal interests of the members of the Board of Directors, employees, officers, executives, consultants and advisors to
those of our stockholders and by providing such individuals with an incentive for outstanding performance to generate superior returns to our
stockholders.

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes the options, warrants, and securities available for issuance under our equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2006:

Plan Category

Number of securities to

be issued upon exercise

of outstanding options,

warrants and rights

(a)

Weighted-average

exercise price of

outstanding options,

warrants and rights

(b)

Number of securities remaining

available for future issuance

under equity compensation

plans (excluding securities

reflected in column (a))

(c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders (1) 2,358,075 $ 2.36 2,403,516

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders (2) 0 N/A 491,250

Total 2,358,075 $ 2.36 2,894,766

(1) Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Option Plan
(2) The only equity compensation plan not approved by security holders is the 2006 Plan, which is subject to stockholder approval at the 2007

Annual Meeting. The 2006 Plan authorizes the issuance of 500,000 shares plus (i) the number of shares of stock available for grant
pursuant to the 1998 Plan, as amended, as of the Effective Date September 19, 2006, and (ii) the number of shares of stock that were
previously granted pursuant to the 1998 Plan and that either terminate, expire, or lapse for any reason after the Effective Date. For
purposes of column (c) of this table, we have subtracted the 2006 director stock grants made under the 2006 Plan (8,750 total shares) from
the base number of shares authorized under the 2006 Plan (500,000 total shares).

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table shows the amount of Quepasa common stock owned by the Company�s directors, nominees, and Messrs. Stearns, Mathews,
and Peterson, who are named executive officers of the Company pursuant to the Commission rules, and those persons who beneficially own
more than 5% of the Company�s common stock. Unless otherwise indicated, each stockholder listed below has sole voting and investment power
with respect to the shares beneficially owned.
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The address of the listed stockholders not otherwise set forth below is 7550 E. Redfield Rd., Suite A, Scottsdale, Arizona 85260. Unless
otherwise indicated, all information is as of April 27, 2007, the record date for the Annual Meeting.

Name(2)

Amount and

Nature of Beneficial

Ownership(1)(2) Percent of Class(3)
Robert B. Stearns 573,333 4.7%
Charles B. Mathews 331,000 2.7%
Douglas A. Gray 100,000 .8%
Malcolm Jozoff 11,875 .1%
Michael D. Matte 12,500 .1%
Jeffrey S. Peterson 1,004,860 8.2%
Lionel Sosa 16,888 .1%
Dr. Jill Syverson-Stork 4,375 *%
Alonso Ancira 2,500 *%
Richard L. Scott(4) 1,333,333 10.9%
F. Stephan Allen(5) 1,500,000 12.2%
Mexicans & Americans Trading Together, Inc.(6) 3,000,000 24.5%
All officers and directors as a group 2,057,331 16.8%

(1) Includes shares that could be purchased by the exercise of options available at March 31, 2007 or within 60 days thereof under the
Company�s equity incentive plans.

(2) Includes shares granted, subject to shareholder approval, under the 2006 Plan as of March 31, 2007, as follows: Mr. Mathews: 30,000;
Mr. Gray: 100,000; Mr. Jozoff: 1,875; Mr. Matte: 7,500; Mr. Peterson: 2,500; Mr Ancira: 2,500; Mr. Sosa: 3,750 and Dr. Syverson-Stork:
4,375.

(3) Percent of class for each person and all officers and directors as a group is based on 12,230,761 shares of common stock outstanding on
March 31, 2007 and includes shares subject to options held by the individual or the group as applicable, which are exercisable within 60
days thereof.

(4) 700 11th St. South, Suite 101, Naples, FL 34102. Includes (i) 166,887 shares of common stock held by the Richard L. Scott Revocable
Trust; (ii) 166,446 shares of common stock held by Richard L. and Annette Scott Family Partnership; and (iii) 1,000,000 shares of
common stock issuable upon exercise of a warrant held by the Richard L. Scott Revocable Trust. Richard L. Scott has sole voting and
dispositive power over the shares of common stock and the warrants held by the: (i) Richard L. Scott Revocable Trust; and (ii) Richard L.
and Annette Scott Family Partnership.

(5) 2100 S. Utica, Suite 305, Tulsa, OK 74114. Includes (i) 500,000 shares of common stock; and (ii) 1,000,000 shares of common stock
issuable upon exercise of a warrant.

(6) The address for MATT, Inc. is 7550 IH 10 W., Suite 630, San Antonio, TX 78229. Includes (i) 1,000,000 shares of common stock; and
(ii) 2,000,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants.

* Less than .1%
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Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

On October 17, 2006, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with MATT Inc. pursuant to which we issued 1,000,000 shares of our
common stock to MATT Inc. at a purchase price of $10.00 per share (for an aggregate purchase price of $10,000,000). MATT Inc. was also
granted a warrant to purchase 1,000,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $12.50 per share and a warrant to purchase
1,000,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $15.00 per share. The warrants expire in October 2016. The exercise prices for the
warrants are subject to adjustment. MATT Inc. was not an affiliate at the time of the transaction.

On November 20, 2006, we entered into the CSMSA with the Organization and MATT Inc. The CSMSA provides that we will develop, operate,
and host the Organization�s website and provide to it all the services necessary to conduct such operations. During the first three (3) years of the
term of the CSMSA, the Organization will reimburse us for our costs and expenses in providing these services, not to exceed $500,000 per
annum. The CSMSA further provides that we will pay the Organization�s operating costs through October 2016, up to a cap of $1,200,000 per
annum minus our costs and expenses for providing the services described above. Under the Amended and Restated Support Agreement, MATT
Inc. has committed to develop advertising revenue for us. The revenue generated pursuant to the Amended and Restated Support Agreement will
determine the adjustments made to the exercise prices of the warrants issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 17,
2006. The Amended and Restated Support Agreement also provides that MATT Inc. will make a corporate jet available to us for up to 25 hours
of use during each year of the Amended and Restated Support Agreement�s term.

Alonso Ancira, a member of our Board of Directors, is also the Chairman of the Board of Directors of MATT Inc. and Altos Hornos de Mexico,
S.A.B. de C.V. (�AHMSA�). MATT Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of AHMSA. Mr. Ancira is a minority stockholder in Grupo Acerero del
Norte S.A. de C.V., the largest stockholder in AHMSA. Mr. Ancira also serves on the Board of Directors of the Organization.

In addition, Robert Stearns, our Chief Executive Officer, authorized a payment to Lionel Sosa, a member of our Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of the Organization, of $300,000 for his role in the successful closing of the transactions described above.

On January 19, 2007, we were advised by the NASDAQ Stock Market that we were not fully compliant with NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4350
because Mr. Sosa: (i) whom we previously had determined was an independent director as defined in Marketplace Rule 4200(a)(15); and
(ii) who was a member of our Compensation Committee, Audit Committee, and Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, had
received a $300,000 payment from us on December 28, 2006, as reported in our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on December 19, 2006. On
January 20, 2007, at our regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors, Mr. Sosa resigned from each of his Board committee positions
and the Board appointed a new independent director, Malcolm Jozoff, to the Board. Mr. Jozoff serves as a member of the Audit Committee and
Standards Committee and as the Chairman of the Compensation Committee. On January 22, 2007, we notified the NASDAQ Stock Market that:
(i) Mr. Sosa had resigned from the Board committees that he served on; (ii) Mr. Jozoff had been elected to the Board and appointed to the
Standards Committee and Audit Committee and the new Chairman of the Compensation Committee; and (iii) no Board or committee actions
occurred during our noncompliance period. As a result, we were once again in full compliance with NASDAQ Marketplace Rules with regard to
the composition of our Board committees.

On January 29, 2007, management adopted the Related Party Transactions Policy. The Related Party Transactions Policy applies to certain
transactions between the Company and a �Related Party.� A Related Party is defined to include (i) an executive officer, director, or director
nominee of the Company; (ii) a shareholder owning in excess of 5% of the Company; (iii) a person who is an immediate family member of a
Company executive officer, director, or director nominee; (iv) an entity which is owned or controlled by any of the foregoing, or an entity in
which any of the foregoing is an officer or has a substantial ownership interest (10% ownership is a �substantial ownership interest� for purposes
of the Related Party Transactions Policy); and (v) any transactions required to be disclosed under Item 404 of Regulation S-B promulgated by
the Commission.
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Under the Related Party Transaction Policy, management must present to the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee any such
related party transactions that it is proposing to enter into. The Related Party Transactions Policy requires that any such transaction must be on
terms comparable to those obtainable in arm�s length dealing with unrelated third parties, and must be approved by the Corporate Governance
and Nominating Committee. Under the terms of the Related Party Transactions Policy, the Company must include disclosure of such
transactions in its applicable filings made with the Commission.

MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors consists of seven (7) members. Our Board of Directors has determined that four (4) directors, Dr. Syverson-Stork and
Messrs. Matte, Ancira, and Jozoff are independent under the standards specified by the Commission and applicable NASDAQ Marketplace
Rules.

Audit Committee

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to oversee the accounting and financial reporting processes of our Company and the audits of our
financial statements. The Audit Committee provides assistance to our Board of Directors with respect to its oversight of (i) the integrity of our
financial statements, (ii) our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (iii) the independent registered public accountant�s qualifications
and independence, and (iv) the performance of our independent registered public accountants. The primary responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are set forth in its charter, which is reviewed annually, and includes various matters with respect to the oversight of our Company�s
accounting and financial reporting process and audits of the financial statements of our Company on behalf of our Board of Directors. The Audit
Committee also selects the independent registered public accountants to conduct the annual audit of the financial statements of our Company;
reviews the proposed scope of such audit, reviews accounting and financial controls of our Company with the independent registered public
accountants and our financial accounting staff; and reviews and approves transactions between us and our directors, officers, and their affiliates.
The Audit Committee currently consists of Dr. Syverson-Stork and Messrs. Matte and Jozoff.

The Audit Committee operates under a written Audit Committee Charter established by the Board. This charter is available on our website at
www.quepasacorp.com and we will provide a printed copy to any stockholder upon request. The Board has determined that each of the members
of the Audit Committee is independent within the meaning of Commission rules and NASDAQ Marketplace Rules. Mr. Matte is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and has been determined by the Board to meet the qualifications of an �audit committee financial expert� in accordance
with Commission rules and similar financial sophistication rules under the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules.

Compensation Committee

The purpose and responsibilities of the Compensation Committee include reviewing and recommending the approval to the Board of Directors
of the compensation of our executive officers, the annual compensation budget for all other employees, bonuses, grants of stock options, and any
changes to our benefit plans. The Compensation Committee currently consists of Dr. Syverson-Stork and Mr. Jozoff. Mr. Jozoff is our
Compensation Committee Chairman.

In addition, the Compensation Committee has delegated to Mr. Stearns, the Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, the
authority to grant, subject to stockholder approval of the 2006 Plan, up to 200,000 options to purchase the Company�s common stock to
individuals who are not subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Any grants
made by Mr. Stearns must have a vesting schedule of at least two (2) years and must be made in accordance with the other terms of the 2006
Plan. The authority delegated to Mr. Stearns lasts until six (6) months from grant and may be amended or revoked by the Board at any time.

The Compensation Committee operates under a written Compensation Committee Charter established by the Board. This charter is available on
our website at www.quepasacorp.com and we will provide a printed copy to any stockholder upon request.
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Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee.

The purpose and responsibilities of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee include the identification of individuals qualified to
become Board members, the selection or recommendation to the Board of Directors of nominees to stand for election as directors, the oversight
of the selection and composition of committees of the Board of Directors, and the oversight of the evaluations of the Board of Directors and
management. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee will consider persons recommended by stockholders for inclusion as
nominees for election to our Board of Directors if the names, biographical data, and qualifications of such persons are submitted in writing in a
timely manner addressed and delivered to our Company�s corporate secretary at the address listed herein. The Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee identifies and evaluates nominees for our Board of Directors, including nominees recommended by stockholders, based
on numerous factors it considers appropriate, some of which may include strength of character, mature judgment, career specialization, relevant
technical skills, diversity, and the extent to which the nominee would fill a present need on our Board of Directors. The Corporate Governance
and Nominating Committee currently consists of Dr. Syverson-Stork and Mr. Matte. Mr. Matte serves as the Chairman of the Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee.

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee operates under a written Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee Charter
established by the Board. This charter is available on our website at www.quepasacorp.com and we will provide a printed copy to any
stockholder upon request.

Standards Committee.

The purpose and responsibilities of the Standards Committee include assisting our Board of Directors in periodically reviewing our website,
www.quepasa.com, for appropriate website content and decorum. The Standards Committee currently consists of Dr. Jill Syverson-Stork and
Messrs. Stearns, Peterson, and Jozoff. Dr. Syverson-Stork is our Standards Committee Chairman.

Communications with the Board

Although we do not have a formal policy regarding communications with the Board, stockholders may communicate with the Board by writing
to us at Quepasa Corporation, Attention: Charles B. Mathews, 7550 E. Redfield Rd., Suite A, Scottsdale, Arizona 85260, or by visiting the
Company�s website at www.quepasacorp.com. Stockholders who would like their submission directed to a member of the Board may so specify,
and the communication will be forwarded, as appropriate.

During the last fiscal year, all Board members attended more than 75% of the total meetings of the Board and committees on which they serve.

Item 13. Exhibits
See Exhibit Index

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Audit Committee�s Pre-approval Policy

Each year, the Audit Committee approves the annual audit engagement in advance. The Audit Committee also has established procedures to
pre-approve all non-audit services provided by the principal independent registered public accounting firm. All 2006 and 2005 non-audit
services listed above were pre-approved.
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Fees Paid to Our Independent Registered Public Accountants in 2005 and 2006

The following fees were paid to the Company�s independent registered public accountants, EKS&H (2005) and Perelson Weiner LLP (2006), for
the last two (2) fiscal years:

Type of Service 2005 2006
Audit Fees $ 76,000 $ 265,635
Audit-Related Fees 5,000 181,525
Tax Fees 8,873 14,346
Other 17,303 0

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed for audit services for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $265,635 and $76,000, respectively. These
fees consisted primarily of the audit of the Company�s annual consolidated financial statements, reviews of the Company�s quarterly financial
statements included in Form 10-QSB filings, and services related to Commission matters and filings.

Audit-Related Fees

The aggregate fees billed for audit-related services for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $181,525 and $5,000, respectively.
These fees consisted primarily of consultations concerning financial accounting and reporting standards.

Tax Fees

The aggregate fees billed for tax services for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $14,346 and $8,873, respectively. These fees
were attributable to tax compliance, tax advice, and tax planning services.

Other Fees

The aggregate fees billed for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $0.

The aggregate fees billed for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $17,303. These fees consist of services related to the filing of a
registration statement to register over three (3) million shares of common stock, merger and acquisition activity, and general consulting work in
relation to new accounting regulations.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Quepasa Corporation

Dated: May 4, 2007 /s/ Robert B. Stearns*
Robert B. Stearns
Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities
and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

/s/ Robert B. Stearns

Robert B. Stearns

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of
Directors

April 17, 2007

/s/ Charles B. Mathews

Charles B. Mathews

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Accounting Officer) and
Executive Vice President

April 17, 2007

Director
Alonso Ancira

/s/ Malcolm Jozoff

Malcolm Jozoff

Director April 17, 2007

/s/ Michael D. Matte

Michael D. Matte

Director April 17, 2007

/s/ Jeffrey S. Peterson

Jeffrey S. Peterson

Director April 17, 2007

Director
Lionel Sosa

/s/ Dr. Jill Syverson-Stork

Dr. Jill Syverson-Stork

Director April 17, 2007

* Mr. Stearns signed the Form 10-KSB/A filed with the Commission on May 4, 2007.
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibit
3.1  Articles of Incorporation, as amended (1)

3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws (2)

4.1  Specimen Common Stock Certificate (3)

10.1  Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 17, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and Mexicans and Americans
Trading Together, Inc. (4)

10.2  Series 1 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated October 17, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and Mexicans and
Americans Trading Together, Inc. (4)

10.3  Series 2 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated October 17, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and Mexicans and
Americans Trading Together, Inc. (4)

10.4  Registration Rights Agreement dated October 17, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and Mexicans and Americans
Trading Together, Inc. (4)

10.5  Amended and Restated Support Agreement dated November 20, 2006 and effective October 17, 2006 by and between Quepasa
Corporation and Mexicans and Americans Trading Together, Inc. (5)

10.6  Corporate Sponsorship and Management Services Agreement dated November 20, 2006 and effective October 17, 2006 by and
between Quepasa Corporation and Mexicans and Americans Trading Together, Inc. (5)

***10.7  Employment Agreement dated March 21, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and Robert Stearns (6)

10.8  Warrant Purchase Agreement dated March 21, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation, Richard L. Scott Investments, LLC
and F. Stephen Allen (7)

10.9  Series 1 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated March 21, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and Richard L. Scott
Investments, LLC. (8)

10.10 Series 1 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated March 21, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and F. Stephen Allen
(8)

10.11 Series 2 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated March 21, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and Richard L. Scott
Investments, LLC (8)

10.12 Series 2 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated March 21, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and F. Stephen Allen
(8)

10.13 Series 3 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated March 21, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and Richard L. Scott
Investments, LLC (8)

10.14 Series 3 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated March 21, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation and F. Stephen Allen
(8)

10.15 Registration Rights Agreement dated March 21, 2006 by and between Quepasa Corporation, Richard L. Scott Investments,
LLC, and F. Stephen Allen (8)

***10.16 Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Option Plan (9)

21.1  Subsidiaries of the small business issuer
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23.1 Consent of Perelson Weiner LLP

23.2 Consent of Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC

24.1 Power of Attorney (See Signatures page)

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.3 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended

31.4 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended

*** Indicates management compensatory contract, plan or arrangement

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form S-1 as filed with the Commission on March 10, 1999.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on September 25, 2006.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form 8-A12G as filed with the Commission on March 16, 1999.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on October 19, 2006.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on November 27, 2006.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB as filed with the Commission on March 31, 2006.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on March 22, 2006.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 as filed with the Commission on January 30, 2007.
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(9) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Registration Statement on Form S-1 as filed with the Commission on April 29, 1999.
Copies of this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB, including the financial statements and financial statement schedules, required to be filed
with the Commission pursuant to Rule 13a-1 under the Act for the Company�s most recent fiscal year, will be furnished to stockholders
at no cost who make a written request to Charles B. Mathews, Quepasa Corporation, 7550 E. Redfield Rd., Suite A, Scottsdale, Arizona
85260 Additionally, any of the exhibits referred to above will be furnished at no cost to stockholders who make a written request to the
same address.
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